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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

The following terms and abbreviations appear in the text of this report and have the definitions described below:

AFUDC Allowance for Funds Used During Construction
ARB Accounting Research Bulletin
ARB 51 ARB 51 “Consolidated Financial Statements”
Aquila Aquila, Inc.
Bbl Barrel
BHEP Black Hills Exploration and Production, Inc., a direct, wholly-owned
 subsidiary of Black Hills Energy, Inc.
BHER Black Hills Energy Resources, Inc., a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of Black
 Hills Energy, Inc.
Black Hills Energy Black Hills Energy, Inc., a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Black Hills Power Black Hills Power, Inc., a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Btu British thermal unit
CFIUS Committee on Foreign Investment in the United States
Cheyenne Light Cheyenne Light, Fuel & Power Company, a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary
 of the Company
Cheyenne Light Pension Plan The Cheyenne Light, Fuel & Power Company Pension Plan
Dth Dekatherm
Enserco Enserco Energy Inc., a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of Black Hills
 Energy, Inc.
FASB Financial Accounting Standards Board
FSP FASB Staff Position
FSP FAS 157-1 Application of FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Statement No. 13 and Other
 Accounting Pronouncements that Address Fair Value Measurement for
 Purposes of Lease Classification or Measurement under Statement 13
FSP FAS 157-2 Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157
FSP FIN 39-1 Amendment of FASB Interpretation No. 39
FERC Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
FIN 39 FASB Interpretation No. 39, “Offsetting of Amounts Related to Certain
 Contracts – an Interpretation of APB Opinion No. 10 and FASB
 Statement No. 105”
GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
Great Plains Great Plains Energy Incorporated
Hastings Hastings Funds Management Ltd
IIF IIF BH Investment LLC, a subsidiary of an investment entity advised by
 JPMorgan Asset Management
Indeck Indeck Capital, Inc.
IPP Independent Power Production
LIBOR London Interbank Offered Rate
LOE Lease Operating Expense
Las Vegas I Las Vegas I gas-fired power plant
LVC Las Vegas Cogeneration Limited Partnership, an indirect, wholly-owned
 subsidiary of Black Hills Energy, Inc.
Mcf Thousand cubic feet
Mcfe One thousand cubic feet equivalent
MMBtu One million British thermal units
Moody’s Moody’s Investor Services, Inc.
MW Megawatt
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MWh Megawatt-hour
Nevada Power Nevada Power Company
PNM PNM Resources, Inc.
PUCN Public Utilities Commission of Nevada
SEC U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission
SFAS Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
SFAS 13 SFAS 13, “Accounting for Leases”
SFAS 71 SFAS 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation”
SFAS 133 SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”
SFAS 141(R) SFAS 141(R), “Business Combinations”
SFAS 144 SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-lived Assets”
SFAS 157 SFAS 157, “Fair Value Measurements”
SFAS 159 SFAS 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
 Liabilities”
SFAS 160 SFAS 160 “Non-controlling Interest in Consolidated Financial Statements –
 an amendment of ARB 51”
SFAS 161 SFAS 161 Disclosure about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities – an
 amendment of FASB Statement No. 133
S&P Standard & Poor’s Rating Services
Valencia Valencia Power, LLC, an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of Black Hills
 Energy, Inc.
WPSC Wyoming Public Service Commission
WRDC Wyodak Resources Development Corp., a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of
 Black Hills Energy, Inc.
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BLACK HILLS CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(unaudited)
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

 2008 2007
 (in thousands, except per share amounts)

     
Operating revenues $ 179,211 $ 186,533
     
Operating expenses:     

Fuel and purchased power  54,615  51,289
Operations and maintenance  26,203  20,559
Administrative and general  25,549  25,663
Depreciation, depletion and amortization  25,644  23,168
Taxes, other than income taxes  10,636  9,899

  142,647  130,578
     
Operating income  36,564  55,955
     
Other income (expense):     

Interest expense  (12,333)  (11,109)
Interest income  433  733
Allowance for funds used during     

construction – equity  281  1,834
Other income, net  344  349

  (11,275)  (8,193)
     
Income from continuing operations     

before equity in earnings of     
unconsolidated subsidiaries, minority     
interest and income taxes  25,289  47,762

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated     
subsidiaries  232  845

Minority interest  (77)  (94)
Income tax expense  (8,872)  (16,013)
     
Income from continuing operations  16,572  32,500
Income (loss) from discontinued operations,     

net of taxes  219  (47)
     
Net income $ 16,791 $ 32,453
     
Weighted average common shares     
outstanding:     

Basic  37,826  35,173
Diluted  38,399  35,577

     
Earnings per share:     
Basic–     

Continuing operations $ 0.43 $ 0.92
Discontinued operations  0.01  —
Total $ 0.44 $ 0.92

     
Diluted–     

Continuing operations $ 0.43 $ 0.91
Discontinued operations  0.01  —
Total $ 0.44 $ 0.91

     
Dividends paid per share of common stock $ 0.35 $ 0.34

 
The accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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BLACK HILLS CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(unaudited)
 March 31, December 31, March 31,
 2008 2007* 2007*
 (in thousands, except share amounts)

ASSETS       
Current assets:       

Cash and cash equivalents $ 75,605 $ 80,960 $ 77,836
Restricted cash  5,484  5,443  2,032
Short-term investments  7,290  —  —
Receivables (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $4,213;       

$4,588 and $3,647, respectively)  270,763  289,244  223,179
Materials, supplies and fuel  87,937  95,968  110,129
Derivative assets  46,337  35,921  38,263
Deferred income taxes  14,011  4,512  —
Other assets  16,048  14,569  8,876
Assets of discontinued operations  1,106  1,052  1,444
  524,581  527,669  461,759

       
Investments  16,745  19,216  23,613
       
Property, plant and equipment  2,564,259  2,490,565  2,297,519

Less accumulated depreciation and depletion  (689,997)  (667,031)  (615,597)
  1,874,262  1,823,534  1,681,922
Other assets:       

Derivative assets  1,360  2,492  1,321
Goodwill  40,501  29,577  30,563
Intangible assets (net of accumulated amortization of       

$28,865; $28,114 and $26,632, respectively)  20,275  21,026  23,650
Other  47,343  46,120  63,299

  109,479  99,215  118,833
 $ 2,525,067 $ 2,469,634 $ 2,286,127

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY       
Current liabilities:       

Accounts payable $ 242,048 $ 239,581 $ 237,789
Accrued liabilities  104,808  116,197  91,217
Derivative liabilities  72,526  39,380  16,360
Deferred income taxes  —  —  1,352
Notes payable  73,000  37,000  —
Current maturities of long-term debt  143,187  143,183  38,822
Accrued income taxes  303  833  12,489
Liabilities of discontinued operations  757  1,551  1,858

  636,629  577,725  399,887
       
Long-term debt, net of current maturities  561,136  564,372  602,870
       
Deferred credits and other liabilities:       

Deferred income taxes  209,272  207,735  197,937
Derivative liabilities  16,516  9,375  3,973
Other  131,032  135,405  126,411

  356,820  352,515  328,321
       
Minority interest in subsidiaries  5,244  5,167  5,252
       
Stockholders’ equity:       

Common stock equity –       
Common stock $1 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized;       

Issued 38,425,006; 37,842,221 and 37,701,238 shares,       
respectively  38,425  37,842  37,701

Additional paid-in capital  578,742  560,475  554,040
Retained earnings  400,909  397,393  369,997
Treasury stock at cost – 29,400; 45,916 and 37,128       

shares, respectively  (1,050)  (1,347)  (984)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss  (51,788)  (24,508)  (10,957)

  965,238  969,855  949,797
       

 $ 2,525,067 $ 2,469,634 $ 2,286,127
__________________________
 * As adjusted (see Note 2)
 

The accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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BLACK HILLS CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(unaudited)
 Three Months Ended
 March 31,
 2008 2007*
 (in thousands)
Operating activities:     

Net income $ 16,791 $ 32,453
(Income) loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes  (219)  47
     
Income from continuing operations  16,572  32,500
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations     

to net cash provided by operating activities:     

Depreciation, depletion and amortization  25,644  23,168
Net change in derivative assets and liabilities  7,745  (20,982)
Deferred income taxes  8,830  13,842
Distributed earnings in associated companies  1,241  472
Allowance for funds used during construction – equity  (281)  (1,834)

Change in operating assets and liabilities:     

Materials, supplies and fuel  22,374  11,838
Accounts receivable and other current assets  (17,972)  41,121
Accounts payable and other current liabilities  (6,233)  4,682

Other operating activities  (4,435)  (10,705)
Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations  53,485  94,102
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities of discontinued operations  196  (1,387)
Net cash provided by operating activities  53,681  92,715
     
Investing activities:     

Property, plant and equipment additions  (74,289)  (38,558)
Increase in short-term investments  (7,290)  —
Other investing activities  951  (305)

Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations  (80,628)  (38,863)
Net cash provided by investing activities of discontinued operations  —  1,200
Net cash used in investing activities  (80,628)  (37,663)
     
Financing activities:     

Dividends paid  (13,275)  (11,377)
Common stock issued  1,998  146,638
Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings, net  36,000  (145,500)
Long-term debt – repayments  (3,232)  (3,753)
Other financing activities  297  (350)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities of continuing operations  21,788  (14,342)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities of discontinued operations  —  —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities  21,788  (14,342)
     

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents  (5,159)  40,710
     
Cash and cash equivalents:     

Beginning of period  81,255(b)  37,530(d)

End of period $ 76,096(a) $ 78,240(c)

     
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:     

Non-cash investing and financing activities-     

Property, plant and equipment acquired with accrued liabilities $ 25,480 $ 25,892
Cash paid during the period for-     

Interest (net of amounts capitalized) $ 7,864 $ 9,282
Income taxes paid (net of amounts refunded) $ 1,500 $ 6,538

_________________________
* As adjusted (see Note 2)
 
(a) Includes approximately $0.5 million of cash included in the assets of discontinued operations.
(b) Includes approximately $0.3 million of cash included in the assets of discontinued operations.
(c) Includes approximately $0.4 million of cash included in the assets of discontinued operations.
(d) Includes approximately $0.6 million of cash included in the assets of discontinued operations.
 

The accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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BLACK HILLS CORPORATION
 

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(unaudited)

(Reference is made to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in the Company’s 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K)

 
(1) MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT

 
The condensed consolidated financial statements included herein have been prepared by Black Hills
Corporation (the Company) without audit, pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC. Certain
information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America have been condensed or
omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations; however, the Company believes that the footnotes
adequately disclose the information presented. These financial statements should be read in conjunction
with the financial statements and the notes thereto, included in the Company’s 2007 Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed with the SEC.
 
Accounting methods historically employed require certain estimates as of interim dates. The information
furnished in the accompanying financial statements reflects all adjustments which are, in the opinion of
management, necessary for a fair presentation of the March 31, 2008, December 31, 2007 and March 31,
2007 financial information and are of a normal recurring nature. Some of the Company’s operations are
highly seasonal and revenues from, and certain expenses for, such operations may fluctuate significantly
among quarterly periods. Demand for electricity and natural gas is sensitive to seasonal cooling, heating
and industrial load requirements, as well as changes in market price. The results of operations for the
three months ended March 31, 2008, are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the
full year. All earnings per share amounts discussed refer to diluted earnings per share unless otherwise
noted.

 
(2) RECENTLY ADOPTED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

 
SFAS 157
 
During September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157. This Statement defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
SFAS 157 does not expand the application of fair value accounting to any new circumstances, but applies
the framework to other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurement. The
Company applies fair value measurements to certain assets and liabilities, primarily commodity
derivatives within our Energy marketing and Oil and gas business segments, interest rate swap
instruments, and other miscellaneous derivatives.
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SFAS 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007
and interim periods within those fiscal years. As of January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the provisions
of SFAS 157 for all assets and liabilities measured at fair value except for non-financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis, as permitted by FSP FAS 157-2. As a result of
the Company’s adoption of SFAS 157, the Company discontinued its use of a “liquidity reserve” in
valuing the total forward positions within its energy marketing portfolio. This impact was accounted for
prospectively as a change in accounting estimate and resulted in a $1.2 million after-tax benefit being
recorded within our unrealized marketing margins. Unrealized margins are presented as a component of
Revenues on the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income. SFAS 157 also required
new disclosures regarding the level of pricing observability associated with instruments carried at fair
value. This additional disclosure is provided in Note 12.
 
FSP FAS 157-1
 
In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-1, which excludes SFAS 13 and other accounting
pronouncements that address fair value for purposes of lease classification and measurement under SFAS
13 from SFAS 157 except when applying SFAS 157 to assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a
business combination. The Company adopted FSP FAS 157-1 effective January 1, 2008. Accordingly, the
provisions of SFAS 157 will not be applied to lease transactions under SFAS 13 except when applying
SFAS 157 to business combinations recorded by the Company.
 
FSP FAS 157-2
 
In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-2, which permits a one-year deferral of the application
of SFAS 157 for all non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except those that are recognized or
disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). The Company
adopted FSP FAS 157-2 effective January 1, 2008. Accordingly, the provisions of SFAS 157 will not be
applied to non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed
at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis, until January 1, 2009. Management is
currently evaluating the impact, if any, that the deferred provisions of SFAS 157 will have on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.
 
SFAS 159
 
SFAS 159 establishes a fair value option under which entities can elect to report certain financial assets
and liabilities at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in earnings. SFAS 159 was adopted on
January 1, 2008 and did not have an impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.
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FSP FIN 39-1
 
FSP FIN 39-1 amends certain paragraphs of FIN 39 to permit a reporting entity to offset fair value
amounts recognized for the right to reclaim or the obligation to return cash collateral against fair value
amounts recognized for derivative instruments executed with the same counterparty under a master
netting arrangement. FSP FIN 39-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The
Company adopted FSP FIN 39-1 effective January 1, 2008. This standard changed our method of netting
certain balance sheet amounts. The Company applied FSP FIN 39-1 as a change in accounting principle
through retrospective application. Each Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet herein reflects the
offsetting of net derivative positions with fair value amounts for cash collateral with the same
counterparty when management believes a legal right of offset exists. Accordingly, December 31, 2007
and March 31, 2007 amounts have been reclassified to conform to this presentation as follows (in
thousands):
 

   As Reported for
Balance Sheet As Reported for FSP FIN 39-1 the March 2008
Line Description the 2007 10-K Reclassification 10-Q
       
Current assets:       

Receivables $ 291,189 $ (1,945) $ 289,244
Derivative assets $ 37,208 $ (1,287) $ 35,921

       
Current liabilities:       

Accounts payable $ 242,813 $ (3,232) $ 239,581
 
 

 As Reported for  As Reported for
Balance Sheet the March 2007 FSP FIN 39-1 the March 2008
Line Description 10-Q Reclassification 10-Q
       
Current assets:       

Receivables $ 237,335 $ (14,156) $ 223,179
Derivative assets $ 25,906 $ 12,357 $ 38,263

       
Current liabilities:       

Derivative liabilities $ 18,159 $ (1,799) $ 16,360
 
The affect on the Cash Flow Statement for 2007 due to the reclassification is as follows (in thousands):
 

Cash Flow Statement As Reported for  As Reported for
Operating Activities the March 2007 FSP FIN 39-1 the March 2008
Line Description 10-Q Reclassification 10-Q
       
Net change in derivative assets       

and liabilities $ (3,948) $ (17,034) $ (20,982)
       
Accounts receivable and other       

current assets $ 26,965 $ 14,156 $ 41,121
       

Accounts payable and other       

current liabilities $ 1,804 $ 2,878 $ 4,682
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As of March 31, 2008, December 31, 2007 and March 31, 2007, the Company offset fair value cash
collateral receivables and payables against net derivative positions in the amounts of $32.9 million, $(1.3)
million and $14.2 million, respectively.
 

(3) RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
 

SFAS 141(R)
 
In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141(R). SFAS 141(R) requires an acquiring entity to
recognize the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interests in the acquiree at
the acquisition date to be measured at their fair values as of the acquisition date, with limited exceptions
specified in the statement. This replaces the cost allocation process in SFAS 141, which required the cost
of an acquisition to be allocated to the individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair values. Acquisition-related costs will be expensed in the periods in which the costs are
incurred or services are rendered. Costs to issue debt or equity securities shall be accounted for under
other applicable GAAP. SFAS 141(R) applies prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008.
Management is currently evaluating the impact SFAS 141(R) will have on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.
 
SFAS 160
 
In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 160. SFAS 160 amends ARB 51 and requires:
 

•     ownership interests in subsidiaries held by other parties other than the parent be clearly identified on the
consolidated statement of financial position within equity, but separate from the parent’s equity;

 

•     consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the non-controlling interest be clearly identified on
the face of the consolidated statement of income;

 

•     changes in a parent’s ownership interest while the parent retains controlling financial interest be accounted for
consistently as equity transactions;

 

•     when a subsidiary is deconsolidated, any retained non-controlling equity investment in the former subsidiary
be initially measured at fair value; and

 

•     sufficient disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent and the interests
of the non-controlling owners.

 
SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008 and interim periods within
those fiscal years. Management does not expect the adoption of SFAS 160 to have a significant effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
 
SFAS 161
 
In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS 161, which requires enhanced disclosures about how derivative
and hedging activities affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. This
Statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after
November 15, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adoption of SFAS 161.
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(4) MATERIALS, SUPPLIES AND FUEL
 

The amounts of materials, supplies and fuel included on the accompanying Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheets, by major classification, are provided as follows (in thousands):
 

 March 31, December 31, March 31,
Major Classification 2008 2007 2007
       
Materials and supplies $ 35,788 $ 35,037 $ 33,303
Fuel  1,749  5,025  6,096
Gas and oil held by Energy       

marketing*  50,400  55,906  70,730
       
Total materials, supplies and fuel $ 87,937 $ 95,968 $ 110,129

___________________________
* As of March 31, 2008, December 31, 2007 and March 31, 2007, market adjustments related to natural

gas held by Energy marketing and recorded in inventory were $4.6 million, $(9.8) million and $2.4
million, respectively (see Note 11 for further discussion of Energy marketing trading activities).

 
The inventory held by the Company’s Energy marketing subsidiary primarily consists of gas held in
storage. Such gas is being held in inventory to capture the price differential between the time at which it
was purchased and a sales date in the future.
 

(5) LONG-TERM DEBT
 
The Company has classified the $128.3 million Wygen I project debt to current maturities as the debt has
a maturity date of June 2008. The Company initially intends to refinance this debt through borrowings on
the revolving credit facility until permanent financing is completed.
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(6) EARNINGS PER SHARE
 

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations is computed by dividing income from continuing
operations by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per share from continuing operations gives effect to all dilutive common shares potentially
outstanding during a period. A reconciliation of “Income from continuing operations” and basic and
diluted share amounts is as follows (in thousands):
 

Period ended March 31, 2008 Three Months
  Average
 Income Shares
    
Income from continuing operations $ 16,572  
    
Basic earnings  16,572 37,826
Dilutive effect of:    

Stock options  — 80
Estimated contingent shares issuable    

for prior acquisition  — 397
Others  — 96

Diluted earnings $ 16,572 38,399
 
 

Period ended March 31, 2007 Three Months
  Average
 Income Shares
    
Income from continuing operations $ 32,500  
    
Basic earnings  32,500 35,173
Dilutive effect of:    

Stock options  — 102
Estimated contingent shares issuable    

for prior acquisition  — 158
Others  — 144

Diluted earnings $ 32,500 35,577
 
Basic average shares include the weighted-average effect of the issuance of 451,465 common shares on
March 21, 2008 and 4,170,891 common shares on February 27, 2007 (see Notes 8 and 13 for discussion
of the March 21, 2008 share issuance).
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(7) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
 

The following table presents the components of the Company’s other comprehensive income
(in thousands):
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

 2008 2007
     
Net income $ 16,791 $ 32,453
Other comprehensive income (loss),     

net of tax:     

Fair value adjustment on derivatives     

designated as cash flow hedges     

(net of tax of $14,951 and $2,499,     

respectively)  (27,433)  (4,691)
Reclassification adjustments on cash     

flow hedges settled and included in     

net income (net of tax of $(152)     

and $3,065, respectively)  273  (5,751)
Unrealized loss on available for sale     

securities (net of tax of $65)  (120)  —
     
Other comprehensive (loss) income $ (10,489) $ 22,011

 
Other comprehensive loss on fair value adjustments on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges in the
three months ended March 31, 2008 is primarily attributable to higher gas prices affecting the fair value
of natural gas swaps at the oil and gas segment and a decrease in interest rates affecting the fair value of
interest rate swaps on variable rate debt.
 
Balances by classification included within Accumulated other comprehensive loss on the accompanying
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets are as follows (in thousands):
 

 Derivatives   Unrealized  
 Designated as Employee Amount from Loss on  
 Cash Flow Benefit Equity-method Available-for-  
 Hedges Plans Investees Sale Securities Total
           
As of March 31, 2008 $ (45,379) $ (6,115) $ (174) $ (120) $ (51,788)
           
As of December 31, 2007 $ (18,178) $ (6,115) $ (215) $ — $ (24,508)
           
As of March 31, 2007 $ (2,352) $ (8,404) $ (201) $ — $ (10,957)
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(8) COMMON STOCK
 

Other than the following transactions, the Company had no other material changes in its common stock,
as reported in Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in the Company’s 2007 Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

 
Issuance of Unregistered Securities
 
On March 21, 2008, the Company issued 451,465 common shares as additional consideration associated
with the “Acquisition Earn-out Litigation” previously disclosed in Note 18 of the Company’s 2007
Annual Report on Form 10-K. No additional consideration was received in exchange for the earn-out
shares (see Note 13).
 
Equity Compensation Plans
 
•    Effective January 1, 2008, the Company granted 32,371 target performance shares to certain officers and

business unit leaders of the Company for the January 1, 2008 through December 31, 2010 performance
period. Performance shares are awarded based on the Company’s total shareholder return over the
designated performance period as measured against a selected peer group and can range from 0 to 175
percent of target. In addition, the Company’s stock price must also increase during the performance
period. The final value of the performance shares will vary according to the number of shares of
common stock that are ultimately granted based upon the actual level of attainment of the performance
criteria. The performance awards are paid 50 percent in the form of cash and 50 percent in the form of
common stock. The grant date fair value was $46.00 per share.

 

•    The Company issued 32,568 shares of common stock under the 2007 short-term incentive compensation
plan during the three months ended March 31, 2008. Pre-tax compensation cost related to the award was
approximately $1.2 million, which was accrued for in 2007.

 

•    The Company granted 35,157 restricted common shares during the three months ended March 31, 2008.
The pre-tax compensation cost related to the awards of restricted stock and restricted stock units of
approximately $1.5 million will be recognized over the three-year vesting period.

 

•    70,547 stock options were exercised during the three months ended March 31, 2008, at a weighted-
average exercise price of $25.01 per share providing $1.8 million of proceeds to the Company.

 

•    Total compensation expense recognized for all equity compensation plans for the three months ended
March 31, 2008 and 2007 was $0.2 million and $1.0 million, respectively.
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(9) EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan
 
The Company has two non-contributory defined benefit pension plans (Plans). One Plan covers
employees of the Company and the following subsidiaries who meet certain eligibility requirements:
Black Hills Service Company, Black Hills Power, WRDC and BHEP. The other Plan covers employees of
the Company’s subsidiary, Cheyenne Light, who meet certain eligibility requirements.
 
The components of net periodic benefit cost for the two Plans are as follows (in thousands):
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

 2008 2007
     
Service cost $ 754 $ 687
Interest cost  1,230  1,129
Expected return on plan assets  (1,573)  (1,374)
Prior service cost  41  38
Net loss  —  127
     
Net periodic benefit cost $ 452 $ 607

 
The Company made a $0.5 million contribution to the Cheyenne Light Pension Plan in the first quarter of
2008; no additional contributions are anticipated to be made to the Plans during the 2008 fiscal year.
 
Supplemental Non-qualified Defined Benefit Plans
 
The Company has various supplemental retirement plans for key executives of the Company
(Supplemental Plans). The Supplemental Plans are non-qualified defined benefit plans.
 
The components of net periodic benefit cost for the Supplemental Plans are as follows (in thousands):
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

 2008 2007
     
Service cost $ 112 $ 103
Interest cost  311  289
Prior service cost  3  3
Net loss  142  178
     
Net periodic benefit cost $ 568 $ 573

 
The Company anticipates that it will need to make contributions to the Supplemental Plans for the 2008
fiscal year of approximately $0.8 million. The contributions are expected to be made in the form of
benefit payments.
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Non-pension Defined Benefit Postretirement Healthcare Plans
 
Employees who are participants in the Company’s Postretirement Healthcare Plans (Healthcare Plans)
and who meet certain eligibility requirements are entitled to postretirement healthcare benefits.
 
The components of net periodic benefit cost for the Healthcare Plans are as follows (in thousands):
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

 2008 2007
     
Service cost $ 125 $ 135
Interest cost  217  207
Net transition obligation  15  15
Net gain/loss  (20)  (4)
     
Net periodic benefit cost $ 337 $ 353

 
The Company anticipates that it will make contributions to the Healthcare Plans for the 2008 fiscal year
of approximately $0.3 million. The contributions are expected to be made in the form of benefits
payments.

 
It has been determined that the Company’s post-65 retiree prescription drug plans are actuarially
equivalent and qualify for the Medicare Part D subsidy. The decrease in net periodic postretirement
benefit cost due to the subsidy was approximately $0.1 million for each of the three month periods ended
March 31, 2008 and 2007.
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(10) SUMMARY OF INFORMATION RELATING TO SEGMENTS OF THE COMPANY’S
 BUSINESS

 
The Company’s reportable segments are those that are based on the Company’s method of internal
reporting, which generally segregates the strategic business groups due to differences in products,
services and regulation. As of March 31, 2008, substantially all of the Company’s operations and assets
are located within the United States.
 
The Company conducts its operations through the following six reporting segments:
 

 Utilities group –
 

•     Electric utility, which supplies electric utility service to western South Dakota, northeastern Wyoming and
southeastern Montana; and

 

•     Electric and gas utility, which supplies electric and gas utility service to Cheyenne, Wyoming and vicinity.
 
Non-regulated energy group –
 

•     Oil and gas, which produces, explores and operates oil and natural gas interests located in the Rocky Mountain
region and other states;

 

•     Power generation, which produces and sells power and capacity to wholesale customers with power plants
concentrated in Colorado, Nevada, Wyoming and California;

 

•     Coal mining, which engages in the mining and sale of coal from its mine near Gillette, Wyoming; and
 

•     Energy marketing, which markets natural gas, crude oil and related services primarily in the western and
central regions of the United States and Canada.

 
Segment information follows the same accounting policies as described in Note 20 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Company’s 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K. In accordance
with the provisions of SFAS 71, intercompany fuel sales to the electric utilities are not eliminated.
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Segment information included in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income is as
follows (in thousands):
 

 External Inter-segment Income (Loss) from
 Operating Operating Continuing
 Revenues Revenues Operations
Three Month Period Ended       

March 31, 2008       
       
Utilities:       

Electric utility $ 57,326 $ 306 $ 5,576
Electric and gas utility  41,976  —  4,591

Non-regulated energy:       

Oil and gas  26,122  —  2,551
Power generation  28,674  6,551  4,316
Coal mining  7,889  5,358  1,629
Energy marketing  6,119  —  299

Corporate  —  —  (2,390)
Inter - segment eliminations  —  (1,110)  —
       
Total $ 168,106 $ 11,105 $ 16,572

 
 

 External Inter-segment Income (Loss) from
 Operating Operating Continuing
 Revenues Revenues Operations
Three Month Period Ended       

March 31, 2007       
       
Utilities:       

Electric utility $ 47,356 $ 411 $ 6,699
Electric and gas utility  36,363  —  3,072

Non-regulated energy:       

Oil and gas  25,843  —  3,591
Power generation  39,566  —  4,979
Coal mining  6,217  3,528  1,615
Energy marketing  28,437  —  12,659

Corporate  1  —  (115)
Inter - segment eliminations  —  (1,189)  —
       
Total $ 183,783 $ 2,750 $ 32,500

 
During 2008, the Company added assets of approximately $24.4 million on the ongoing construction of
the Wygen III power plant within the Electric utility segment; approximately $8.3 million for
development costs related to the Aquila asset acquisition; and approximately $18.0 million on assets
related to the construction of the Valencia project, expected to be in commercial operation in the second
quarter of 2008, in the Power generation segment. Other than these significant additions the Company
had no additional material changes in the assets of its reporting segments, as reported in Note 20 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in the Company’s 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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(11) RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES
 

The Company actively manages its exposure to certain market risks as described in Note 2 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in the Company’s 2007 Annual Report on Form
10-K. Details of derivative and hedging activities included in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheets and Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income are as follows:
 
Trading Activities
 
Natural Gas and Crude Oil Marketing
 
The contract or notional amounts and terms of the Company’s natural gas and crude oil marketing
activities and derivative commodity instruments are as follows:
 

 Outstanding at Outstanding at Outstanding at
 March 31, 2008 December 31, 2007 March 31, 2007
  Latest  Latest  Latest
 Notional Expiration Notional Expiration Notional Expiration
 Amounts (months) Amounts (months) Amounts (months)
(in thousands of MMBtus)          

Natural gas basis          

swaps purchased  187,068 33  125,577 36  169,341 21
Natural gas basis          

swaps sold  191,738 33  128,892 36  178,563 21
Natural gas fixed for float          

swaps purchased  53,738 24  42,326 24  40,323 24
Natural gas fixed for float          

swaps sold  67,910 24  59,253 24  61,880 24
Natural gas physical          

purchases  132,559 12  90,583 15  104,393 19
Natural gas physical sales  136,687 24  98,888 27  109,593 31
Natural gas options          

purchased  11,311 12  3,472 10  33,839 9
Natural gas options sold  11,311 12  3,472 10  33,839 9
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 Outstanding at Outstanding at Outstanding at
 March 31, 2008 December 31, 2007 March 31, 2007
  Latest  Latest  Latest
 Notional Expiration Notional Expiration Notional Expiration
 Amounts (months) Amounts (months) Amounts (months)
          
(in thousands of Bbls)          

Crude oil physical          

purchases  3,737 9  4,991 12  1,806 6
Crude oil physical sales  2,903 9  3,800 12  1,557 6
Crude oil swaps purchased  495 9  495 12  450 12
Crude oil swaps sold  545 9  495 12  450 12
          
(Dollars, in thousands)          

Canadian dollars          

purchased $ 27,000 1 $ 28,000 2 $ 13,817 1
 

Derivatives and certain natural gas and crude oil marketing activities were marked to fair value on March
31, 2008, December 31, 2007 and March 31, 2007, and the related gains and/or losses recognized in
earnings. The amounts included in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets and
Statements of Income are as follows (in thousands):
 

     Cash  
     Collateral  
     Included in  
 Current Non-current Current Non-current Derivative  
 Derivative Derivative Derivative Derivative Assets/ Unrealized
 Assets Assets Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities (Loss) Gain
             
March 31, 2008 $ 45,542 $ 1,246 $ 21,393 $ 994 $ (32,876) $ (8,475)
             
December 31, 2007 $ 30,999 $ 1,901 $ 16,908 $ 2,482 $ 1,287 $ 14,797
             
March 31, 2007 $ 32,447 $ 149 $ 12,897 $ 514 $ (14,156) $ 5,029

 
FSP FIN 39-1 permits a reporting entity to offset fair value amounts recognized for the right to reclaim or
the obligation to return cash collateral against fair value amounts recognized for derivative instruments
executed with the same counterparty under a master netting arrangement. Each Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheet herein reflects the offsetting of net derivative positions with fair value amounts for cash
collateral with the same counterparty when management believes a legal right of offset exists.
Accordingly, December 31, 2007 and March 31, 2007 amounts have been reclassified to conform to this
presentation.
 
In addition, certain volumes of natural gas inventory have been designated as the underlying hedged item
in a “fair value” hedge transaction. These volumes include market adjustments based on published
industry quotations. Market adjustments are recorded in inventory on the Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheets and the related unrealized gain/loss on the Condensed Consolidated Statements of
Income, effectively offsetting the earnings impact of the unrealized gain/loss recognized on the associated
derivative asset or liability described above. As of March 31, 2008, December 31, 2007 and March 31,
2007, the market adjustments recorded in inventory were $4.6 million, $(9.8) million and $2.4 million,
respectively.
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Activities Other Than Trading
 
Oil and Gas Exploration and Production
 
On March 31, 2008, December 31, 2007 and March 31, 2007, the Company had the following derivatives
and related balances (in thousands):
 

       Pre-tax  
  Maximum  Non-  Non- Accumulated  
  Terms Current current Current current Other Pre-tax
  in Derivative Derivative Derivative Derivative Comprehensive Income
 Notional* Years Assets Assets Liabilities Liabilities Income (Loss) (Loss)
March 31,               
2008               
               
Crude oil               

swaps/options 495,000 0.75 $ 484 $ — $ 4,078 $ 2,187 $ (6,265) $ 484
Natural gas               

swaps 11,657,000 1.59  66  114  12,653  3,328  (15,801)  —
   $ 550 $ 114 $ 16,731 $ 5,515 $ (22,066) $ 484
December 31,               
2007               
               
Crude oil               

swaps/options 495,000 1.00 $ 352 $ — $ 3,506 $ 1,794 $ (5,300) $ 352
Natural gas               

swaps 11,406,000 1.59  4,332  591  507  825  3,587  4
   $ 4,684 $ 591 $ 4,013 $ 2,619 $ (1,713) $ 356
March 31,               
2007               
               
Crude oil               

swaps/options 450,000 1.00 $ 649 $ — $ 934 $ 546 $ (1,415) $ 584
Natural gas               

swaps 11,613,000 1.17  5,049  276  2,260  2,151  1,638  (724)
   $ 5,698 $ 276 $ 3,194 $ 2,697 $ 223 $ (140)

________________________
*crude in Bbls, gas in MMBtus
 

Based on March 31, 2008 market prices, a $17.1 million loss would be realized and reported in pre-tax
earnings during the next twelve months related to hedges of production. Estimated and actual realized
gains will likely change during the next twelve months as market prices change.
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Fuel in Storage
 
On March 31, 2008, December 31, 2007 and March 31, 2007, the Company had the following swaps and
related balances (in thousands):
 

       Pre-tax  
    Non-  Non- Accumulated  
  Maximum Current current Current current Other  
  Terms in Derivative Derivative Derivative Derivative Comprehensive Unrealized
 Notional* Months Assets Assets Liabilities Liabilities Income (Loss) Gain
March 31,               
2008               
               
Natural gas               

swaps 300,000 1 $ 245 $ — $ 245 $ — $ — $ —
               

December 31,               
2007               

               
Natural gas               

swaps 610,000 4 $ 238 $ — $ 68 $ — $ 170 $ —
               

March 31,               
2007               
               
Natural gas               

swaps 455,000 12 $ — $ — $ 161 $ — $ (161) $ —

________________________
*gas in MMBtus
 

Based on March 31, 2008 market prices, no gain or loss would be realized and reported in pre-tax
earnings during the next twelve months related to the cash flow hedges. Estimated and actual realized
losses will likely change during the next twelve months as market prices change.

 
23



Financing Activities
 
On March 31, 2008, December 31, 2007 and March 31, 2007, the Company’s interest rate swaps and
related balances were as follows (in thousands):
 

  Weighted      Pre-tax
  Average   Non-  Non- Accumulated
 Current Fixed Maximum Current current Current current Other
 Notional Interest Terms in Derivative Derivative Derivative Derivative Comprehensive
 Amount Rate Years Assets Assets Liabilities Liabilities (Loss)/Income
March 31,               
2008               
               
Interest rate               

swaps $ 150,000 5.04% 8.50 $ — $ — $ 3,534 $ 10,007 $ (13,541)
               
December 31,               
2007               
               
Interest rate               

swaps $ 150,000 5.04% 8.75 $ — $ — $ 1,792 $ 4,274 $ (6,066)
               
March 31,               
2007               
               
Interest rate               

swaps $ 150,000 5.04% 9.50 $ 118 $ 896 $ 108 $ 762 $ 144
 
Based on March 31, 2008 market interest rates and balances, a loss of approximately $3.5 million would
be realized and reported in pre-tax earnings during the next twelve months. Estimated and realized losses
will likely change during the next twelve months as market interest rates change.
 
In addition to the interest rate swaps above, during the third quarter of 2007, the Company entered into
forward starting interest rate swaps with a total notional amount of $250.0 million to hedge the risk of
interest rate movement between the hedge dates and the expected pricing date for a portion of the
Company’s anticipated 2008 long-term debt financings. The swaps have a mandatory early termination
date of June 30, 2008. As of March 31, 2008, the mark-to-market value was $(30.6) million. These swaps
are designated as cash flow hedges and accordingly, any resulting gain or loss will be recorded in
“Accumulated other comprehensive loss” on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet and amortized
into earnings as additional interest income or expense over the life of the related long-term financing.
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(12) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
 
Adoption of SFAS 157
 
Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted SFAS 157 as discussed in Note 2, which, among other
things, requires enhanced disclosures about assets and liabilities carried at fair value.
 
SFAS 157 provides a single definition of fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
As permitted under SFAS 157, the Company utilizes a mid-market pricing convention (the mid-point
price between bid and ask prices) as a practical expedient for valuing a significant portion of its assets
and liabilities measured and reported at fair value. SFAS 157 also requires enhanced disclosures and
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The fair value
hierarchy ranks the quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair values giving the
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1
measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The Company is
able to classify fair value balances based on the observability of inputs.
 
Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value will be classified and disclosed in one of the following
three categories:
 

Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices available in active markets that are accessible at the
measurement date for identical unrestricted assets or liabilities. This level primarily consists of
financial instruments such as exchange-traded securities and listed derivatives.
 
Level 2 – Pricing inputs include quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in
active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not
active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability and inputs that
are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other
means.
 
Level 3 - Pricing inputs include significant inputs that are generally less observable from
objective sources. These inputs reflect management’s best estimate of fair value using its own
assumptions about the assumptions a market participant would use in pricing the asset or
liability.

 
The following table sets forth by level within the fair value hierarchy the Company’s assets and liabilities
that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2008. As required by SFAS 157,
assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to
the fair value measurement. The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair
value measurement requires judgment, and may affect their placement within the fair value hierarchy
levels.
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Recurring Fair Value At Fair Value as of March 31, 2008
Measures (in thousands)  
    Counterparty  
 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Netting (a) Total
Assets:           

Short - term investments $ — $ — $ 7,290 $ — $ 7,290
Commodity derivatives  32,876  89,452  12,549  (87,180)  47,697
Total $ 32,876 $ 89,452 $ 19,839 $ (87,180) $ 54,987

           
Liabilities:           

Commodity derivatives $ — $ 126,127 $ 5,576 $ (87,180) $ 44,523
Interest rate swaps  —  44,164  —  —  44,164
Foreign currency           

derivatives  —  355  —  —  355
Total $ — $ 170,646 $ 5,576 $ (87,180) $ 89,042

________________________
 (a) FIN 39 permits the netting of receivables and payables when a legally enforceable master netting

agreement exists between the Company and a counterparty. A master netting agreement is an
agreement between two parties who have multiple contracts with each other that provides for the net
settlement of all contracts in the event of default on or termination of any one contract.

 
The following table presents the changes in level 3 recurring fair value for the three months ended March
31, 2008 (in thousands):
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31, 2008
  
 Commodity Short-term  
 Derivatives Investments Total
      
Balance as of January 1, 2008 $ 6,422 $ — $ 6,422

Realized and unrealized gains (losses)  1,037  (185)  852
Purchases, issuance and settlements  (486)  7,475  6,989

Balances as of March 31, 2008 $ 6,973 $ 7,290 $ 14,263
       
Changes in unrealized gains (losses)       

relating to instruments still held as of       

March 31, 2008 $ (789) $ (185) $ (974)
 
Gains and losses (realized and unrealized) for level 3 commodity derivatives are included in operating
revenues on the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income. Short-term investments included in level
3 represent auction rate securities held at March 31, 2008. The Company believes an analysis of
commodity derivatives classified as level 3 needs to be undertaken with the understanding that these
items may be economically hedged as part of a total portfolio of instruments that may be classified in
level 1 or 2, or with instruments that may not be accounted for at fair value. Accordingly, gains and losses
associated with level 3 balances may not necessarily reflect trends occurring in the underlying business.
Further, unrealized gains and losses for the period from level 3 items may be offset by unrealized gains
and losses in positions classified in level 1 or 2, as well as positions that have been realized during the
quarter. The unrealized losses for these investments are recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive
income on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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(13) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
 

The Company is subject to various legal proceedings, claims and litigation as described in Note 18 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in the Company’s 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
 
Las Vegas I Tolling Agreement
 
As discussed under “Las Vegas Cogeneration/Nevada Power Arbitration” within this Note 13, the
Company has entered into an agreement for 50 MW of the output of the 53 MW Las Vegas I plant with
Nevada Power. The contract is a tolling agreement whereby Nevada Power is responsible for supplying
natural gas. The terms of the contract are for the months of June through September for each of the years
beginning in 2008 and ending in 2017. The Las Vegas I plant is included in the pending sale of the power
generation assets (see Note 16).
 
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
 
Earn-Out Litigation
 
As disclosed in previous filings with the SEC, the Company has been defending two litigation
proceedings brought by the former Indeck stockholders. The first proceeding is a civil lawsuit that has
been pending in federal court in Illinois. The second proceeding is an arbitration process brought under
the terms of a Merger Agreement that provided for contingent payment of Earn-Out Consideration to the
former Indeck stockholders. On March 21, 2008, the parties settled all claims in the lawsuit. Under the
Settlement Agreement the Company agreed to pay additional Earn-Out Consideration to the former
Indeck stockholders. The aggregate value of the 451,465 shares of additional Black Hills common stock
issued was recorded as additional goodwill. The trial court entered its Order approving the Settlement
Agreement on March 27, 2008.
 
The Merger Agreement provides a $35.0 million “cap” or maximum amount of Earn-Out Consideration
payable with respect to the Earn-Out provision. With the payment made in settlement of the litigation to
date, the Company has paid in common stock an aggregate value of $23.5 million. The Company asserts
no additional Earn-Out Consideration is payable with respect to claims pending in arbitration. While any
amount that could be awarded in the arbitration would be limited to the difference between the “cap” and
the aggregate value paid to date, the former Indeck stockholders may seek additional payment, equivalent
to interest and dividends on any such amount. The Company would oppose this claim as well.
 
The Order provides all lawsuit claims are dismissed without prejudice pending completion of the
arbitration. The court retains jurisdiction over the parties for the purpose of enforcing the order entered in
the pending arbitration. Once the parties submit a final order to the court upon completion of the
arbitration, the dismissal of all claims will convert to a dismissal with prejudice.
 
The outcome of the matters remaining in the arbitration is uncertain, as is the amount of any Earn-Out
Consideration that could be awarded following arbitration. If any additional consideration is awarded, it
would be recorded as additional goodwill, which would be subject to a recoverability analysis under
GAAP. An award of interest, if any, would be recorded as a charge to earnings.
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Las Vegas Cogeneration/Nevada Power Company Arbitration
 
As disclosed in previous filings with the SEC, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, LVC has been in
an arbitration proceeding with Nevada Power concerning the power purchase agreement at our Las Vegas
I facility. On December 4, 2007, the parties reached a settlement. The proposed Settlement Agreement
was filed with the PUCN on December 14, 2007. The PUCN approved the settlement on April 4, 2008.
The existing structure of LVC as a “qualifying facility” under federal law, together with existing contracts
with Nevada Power have been terminated. LVC filed with the FERC to become an “exempt wholesale
generator” with authority to sell power at market based rates. FERC granted the Company’s request and
issued its Order on March 4, 2008. LVC and Nevada Power reached agreement on the terms of a new
Power Purchase Agreement that will replace the existing firm fuel supply and transportation agreements.
The new Power Purchase Agreement likewise was approved by the PUCN.
 
Except as described above, there have been no material developments in any previously reported
proceedings or any new material proceedings that have developed or material proceedings that have
terminated during the first three months of 2008.

 
(14) ACQUISITIONS

 
Aquila
 
On February 7, 2007, the Company entered into a definitive agreement with Aquila for the asset
acquisition of Aquila’s regulated electric utility in Colorado and its regulated gas utilities in Colorado,
Kansas, Nebraska and Iowa. The purchase price of the assets is $940 million, subject to closing
adjustments.
 
The asset purchase is subject to regulatory approvals from the Missouri Public Service Commission, the
Kansas Corporation Commission, the Colorado Public Utilities Commission, the Nebraska Public Service
Commission, the Iowa Utilities Board and FERC; Hart-Scott-Rodino antitrust review; as well as other
customary conditions. The Company has obtained state regulatory approval for the transfer of ownership
in Iowa, Nebraska, Colorado and Kansas. At the federal level, the FERC has approved the acquisition of
the Colorado Electric operation, and antitrust clearance has been obtained from the Federal Trade
Commission.
 
The purchase is also conditioned on the completion of the acquisition of the outstanding shares of Aquila
by Great Plains immediately following the sale of the assets of the regulated utilities to the Company.
During October 2007, Great Plains and Aquila shareholders approved Great Plains’ acquisition of Aquila.
Great Plains and Aquila now await final regulatory approval needed from the Missouri Public Service
Commission.
 
The Company is capitalizing certain incremental acquisition costs incurred related to this pending
acquisition. Amounts capitalized at March 31, 2008 and 2007 were approximately $27.4 million and $2.0
million, respectively. In addition, the Company has expensed certain integration-related costs of
approximately $4.1 million and $0.2 million for the three month periods ended March 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.
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(15) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
 

The Company accounts for its discontinued operations under the provisions of SFAS 144. Accordingly,
results of operations and the related charges for discontinued operations have been classified as “Income
(loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes” in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Income. Assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations have been reclassified and
reflected on the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as “Assets of discontinued
operations” and “Liabilities of discontinued operations.” For comparative purposes, all prior periods
presented have been restated to reflect the reclassifications on a consistent basis.
 
Sale of Crude Oil Marketing and Transportation Assets
 
On March 1, 2006, the Company sold the operating assets of BHER and related subsidiaries, its crude oil
marketing and transportation business.
 
Net income (loss) from the discontinued operations was as follows (in thousands):
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

  2008  2007
     
Pre-tax income (loss) from     

discontinued operations $ 192 $ (73)
Income tax benefit  27  26
Net income (loss) from discontinued     

operations $ 219 $ (47)
 
Income and losses incurred subsequent to the asset sale resulted from the settlement of certain contract
disputes with the purchaser and other costs incurred in closing down the business operations. Assets and
liabilities of the crude oil marketing and transportation business subsequent to the sale were not
significant.

 
(16) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

 
Definitive Agreement to Sell IPP Plants
 
On April 29, 2008, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to sell seven of its IPP plants to
affiliates of Hastings and IIF. Under the agreement, the Company will receive a cash payment of $840
million, subject to certain working capital adjustments. The transaction is subject to regulatory approval
from the FERC, antitrust clearance under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Act, and completion of a federal review
by the CFIUS, and is expected to be completed late in the second quarter or early third quarter of 2008.
 
Under the terms of the agreement, the Company has the right to retain ownership of the Fountain Valley
240 MW power plant in the event closing conditions for the Company’s planned acquisition of the Aquila
utility assets are not met. The purchase price for the Fountain Valley plant represents $240 million of the
total $840 million purchase price. The Company is also obligated to complete construction, startup and
testing of the Valencia plant prior to the sale.
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Assets and liabilities to be sold under the agreement are currently presented within the Power generation
segment of our Non-regulated energy group and include the following (in thousands):
 

 March 31,
 2008
   
Current assets $ 21,990
Property, plant and equipment*  367,115
Other non-current assets  15,652
Current liabilities  (14,495)
Other non-current liabilities  (30)
   

Net assets** $ 390,232
___________________________

 * Under the definitive agreement, the Company is required to complete the construction of the
Valencia plant and expects associated capital expenditures to approximate $40.7 million.

 ** The net asset value of the Fountain Valley plant of approximately $143.1 million is excluded from
the above table as the sale of the Fountain Valley plant is contingent on the acquisition of the Aquila
utility assets. The net assets and operating activity for the Fountain Valley plant will not be recorded
as discontinued operations until the contingency is met.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

 
We are a diversified energy company operating principally in the United States with two major business groups –
utilities and non-regulated energy. We report our business groups in the following segments:
 

Business Group Financial Segment
  
Utilities group Electric utility
 Electric and gas utility
  
Non-regulated energy group Oil and gas
 Power generation
 Coal mining
 Energy marketing

 
Our utilities group consists of our electric and gas utility segments. Our electric utility, Black Hills Power,
generates, transmits and distributes electricity to an average of approximately 65,100 customers in South Dakota,
Wyoming and Montana. Our electric and gas utility, Cheyenne Light, serves approximately 39,400 electric and
33,000 natural gas customers in Cheyenne, Wyoming and vicinity. Our non-regulated energy group engages in the
production of coal, natural gas and crude oil primarily in the Rocky Mountain region; the production of electric
power through ownership of a diversified portfolio of generating plants and the sale of electric power and capacity
primarily under long-term contracts; and the marketing of natural gas, crude oil and related services.
 
Definitive Agreement to Sell IPP Plants
 
On April 29, 2008, we entered into a definitive agreement with affiliates of Hastings and IIF to sell seven IPP gas-
fired plants with a total capacity of 974 MW for $840 million cash, subject to certain working capital adjustments.
 
Under the terms of the agreement, we have the right to retain ownership of the Fountain Valley 240 MW power
plant in Colorado in the event closing conditions for our planned acquisition of utility assets from Aquila are not
met. The purchase price for the 240 MW Fountain Valley plant represents $240 million of the total $840 million
purchase price.
 
In order to close, this transaction must receive regulatory approval from FERC, antitrust clearance under the Hart-
Scott-Rodino Act, and completion of a federal review by the CFIUS. The closing of the sale, pending customary
regulatory approvals, is expected to occur late second quarter or early third quarter of 2008.
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The following power plants are included in the definitive agreement with Hastings and IIF:
 

 Capacity
Asset (State) (net megawatts)
  
Fountain Valley (Colorado)* 240
Las Vegas II (Nevada) 224
Valencia (New Mexico, under construction)** 149
Arapahoe (Colorado) 130
Harbor Cogeneration (California) 98
Valmont (Colorado) 80
Las Vegas I (Nevada) 53

Total 974
_________________________
 * We are not obligated to sell the Fountain Valley plant in the event that closing conditions are not met for our

pending acquisition of the Aquila utility assets.
** The definitive agreement requires us to complete the construction of the Valencia plant with the completion

considered in the $840 million sale price.
 
The following power plants will remain with the Company in the Power generation business segment of our Non-
regulated energy group:
 

 Capacity
Asset (State) (net megawatts)
  
Wygen I (Wyoming)* 90
Gillette Combustion Turbine (Wyoming) 40
Ontario Cogeneration (California) 12
Rupert and Glenns Ferry Cogeneration (Idaho)** 11
Power fund investments (various locations) 5

Total 158
_________________________
 * Mine-mouth coal-fired baseload generation
** Capacity represents the Company’s 50 percent interest in the two power plants
 
Wygen III Power Plant Project
 
In March 2008, the Company received final regulatory approval for Wygen III. Construction began immediately
and the 100 MW coal-fired base load electric generating facility is expected to take 24 to 30 months to complete.
The expected cost of construction is approximately $255 million, which includes AFUDC. We anticipate that
Black Hills Power will have at least 55 MW of the facilities’ capacity and we are considering third-party investors
to own the remaining 45 MW. Definitive ownership structuring for the Wygen III plant is expected prior to the end
of 2008.
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Valencia Power Plant Project
 
In April 2007, we entered into a power purchase agreement to provide electric power to Public Service Company
of New Mexico, a regulated electric and natural gas utility subsidiary of PNM. Under the terms of the agreement,
we will provide the capacity and energy of the Valencia 149 MW, simple-cycle gas turbine generation facility
located near Albuquerque, New Mexico. The project is expected to cost approximately $101 million, and has an
expected commercial operation in-service date of June 2008. The Valencia plant is included in the pending sale of
the power generation assets and the Company is obligated to complete construction, startup and testing of the plant
prior to the sale.
 
Pending Acquisition of Assets from Aquila
 
On February 7, 2007, we entered into a definitive agreement with Aquila for the asset acquisition of Aquila’s
regulated electric utility in Colorado and its regulated gas utilities in Colorado, Kansas, Nebraska and Iowa. The
purchase price of the assets is $940 million, subject to closing adjustments.
 
The asset purchase is subject to regulatory approvals from the Missouri Public Service Commission, the Kansas
Corporation Commission, the Colorado Public Utilities Commission, the Nebraska Public Service Commission,
the Iowa Utilities Board and FERC; Hart-Scott-Rodino antitrust review; as well as other customary conditions. We
have obtained all required regulatory approvals including state regulatory approval for the transfer of ownership in
Iowa, Nebraska, Colorado and Kansas. At the federal level, the FERC has approved our acquisition of the
Colorado Electric operation, and antitrust clearance has been obtained from the Federal Trade Commission.
 
The purchase is also conditioned on the completion of the acquisition of the outstanding shares of Aquila by Great
Plains immediately following the sale of the assets of the regulated utilities to us. During October 2007, Great
Plains and Aquila shareholders approved Great Plains’ acquisition of Aquila. Great Plains and Aquila now await
the final regulatory approval needed from the Missouri Public Service Commission.
 
We are capitalizing certain incremental acquisition costs incurred related to this pending acquisition. Amounts
capitalized at March 31, 2008 and 2007 were approximately $27.4 million and $2.0 million, respectively. In
addition, we expensed certain integration-related costs of approximately $4.1 million and $0.2 million for the three
month periods ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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Results of Operations
 
Executive Summary
 
Results for the three months ended March 31, 2008 were lower than the same period of the prior year primarily
due to lower earnings from the Non-regulated energy business group. Income from continuing operations for the
three month period ended March 31, 2008 was $16.6 million, or $0.43 per share, compared to $32.5 million, or
$0.91 per share, reported for the same period in 2007. For the three month period ended March 31, 2008, net
income was $16.8 million or $0.44 per share, compared to $32.5 million, or $0.91 per share, for the same period in
2007.
 
Utilities earnings were affected by Cheyenne Light benefiting from a 2008 rate increase and the sale of excess
generation from the Wygen II plant, partially offset by increased costs related to Wygen II plant operations and
depreciation. Black Hills Power earnings decreased due to lower margins on retail sales as higher fuel and
purchased power costs were partially offset by increased MWh sold, and higher margins from off-system sales.
 
Earnings from oil and gas operations decreased for the quarter driven by higher LOE and increased depletion
expense, partially offset by an overall increase in revenues. Revenues for the quarter were negatively impacted by
a $2.1 million pre-tax accrual for a royalty settlement with the Jicarilla Apache Nation. First quarter 2008
production was 4 percent lower than first quarter 2007 primarily due to weather related impacts, federal drilling
permit delays and lower production from non-operated properties. Average hedged oil prices increased 46 percent
and average hedged gas prices decreased 3 percent exclusive of the impact of the royalty settlement in 2008.
 
Decreased earnings from power generation reflect lower earnings from the Harbor plant due to reduced contract
termination payments, the suspension of operations at the Ontario plant and lower earnings from power fund
investments. Operating expenses decreased primarily due to lower depreciation expense. The operation of Las
Vegas I as a merchant plant until a new tolling contract with Nevada Power begins in June 2008 resulted in a
decrease in revenues and fuel costs at that plant. The operations pertaining to the IPP plants to be sold to Hastings
and IIF, excluding the Fountain Valley plant, will be reclassified to Discontinued operations beginning in the
second quarter of 2008.
 
Earnings from energy marketing reflect lower realized margins received, lower volumes and higher unrealized
mark-to-market losses. Margins were impacted by changes in market conditions as lower Rocky Mountain natural
gas price basis differentials and calendar spreads contributed to the earnings decline. Lower operating expenses
reflect lower incentive compensation related to the decreased earnings from realized gross margins.
 
Discontinued operations in 2008 and 2007 represent the continued close-out of operations related to our crude oil
marketing and transportation business. The assets of this business were sold in March 2006.
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Consolidated Results
 
Revenues and Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations provided by each business group were as follows (in
thousands):
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

 2008 2007
Revenues     
     
Utilities $ 99,302 $ 83,719
Non-regulated energy  79,909  102,813
Corporate  —  1
 $ 179,211 $ 186,533
     
Income/(loss) from     

continuing operations     
     
Utilities $ 10,167 $ 9,771
Non-regulated energy  8,795  22,844
Corporate  (2,390)  (115)
 $ 16,572 $ 32,500

 
Income from continuing operations decreased $15.9 million due primarily to the following:
 

•     a $12.4 million decrease in Energy marketing earnings;
 

•     a $1.1 million decrease in Electric utility earnings;
 

•     a $1.0 million decrease in Oil and gas earnings;
 

•     a $0.7 million decrease in Power generation earnings; and
 

•     a $2.3 million increase in unallocated corporate costs.
 

partially offset by:
 

•     a $1.5 million increase in Electric and gas utility earnings.
 
See the following discussion under the captions “Utilities group” and “Non-regulated energy group” for more
detail on our results of operations by business segment.
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The following business group and segment information does not include intercompany eliminations or results of
discontinued operations.
 
Utilities Group
 
Electric Utility
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

 2008 2007
 (in thousands)

     
Revenue $ 57,632 $ 47,767
Fuel and purchased power  27,499  17,035
Gross margin  30,133  30,732
     
Operating expenses  19,542  18,187
Operating income $ 10,591 $ 12,545
     
Income from continuing operations     

and net income $ 5,576 $ 6,699
 
The following tables provide certain operating statistics for the Electric utility segment:
 

 Electric Revenue
 (in thousands)
  
 Three Months Ended March 31,
  Percentage  

Customer Base 2008 Change 2007
      
Commercial $ 13,484 3% $ 13,105
Residential  12,966 5  12,407
Industrial  5,296 4  5,096
Municipal sales  625 8  579

Total retail sales  32,371 4  31,187
Contract wholesale  6,931 7  6,457
Wholesale off system  15,097 129  6,582

Total electric sales  54,399 23  44,226
Other revenue  3,233 (9)  3,541

Total revenue $ 57,632 21% $ 47,767
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 Megawatt Hours Sold
  
 Three Months Ended March 31,
  Percentage  

Customer Base 2008 Change 2007
      
Commercial  173,459 4%  166,094
Residential  163,034 7  152,736
Industrial  102,669 3  99,254
Municipal sales  8,208 11  7,420

Total retail sales  447,370 5  425,504
Contract wholesale  171,620 4  165,110
Wholesale off system  227,741 70  133,849

Total electric sales  846,731 17%  724,463
 
 

 Electric Utility Power Plant Availability
  
 Three Months Ended March 31,

 2008 2007
   

Coal-fired plants 93.9% 95.3%
Other plants 93.9% 99.9%
Total availability 93.9% 97.3%

 
 

 Megawatt Hours Generated
 and Purchased
  
 Three Months Ended March 31,

  Percentage  

Resources 2008 Change 2007
    

Coal 432,882 (2)% 440,518
Gas 37,000 —     5,698

 469,882 5% 446,216
    
MWhs purchased 384,581 31% 294,463

Total resources 854,463 15% 740,679
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 Heating Degree Days
  
 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

 2008 2007
Heating degree days:   

Actual–   

Heating degree days 3,361 3,055
   
Percent of normal–   

Heating degree days 102% 93%
 
Three Months Ended March 31, 2008 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2007. Income from
continuing operations decreased $1.1 million, or 17 percent from the prior period primarily due to the following:
 

•     A $1.0 million reduction in retail sales margins due to increased fuel and purchased power costs, partially
offset by a 5 percent increase in MWhs sold; and

 

•     Increased operating expense due to increased repair and maintenance expenses, personnel costs, consulting
fees and allocated corporate costs.

 
Partially offsetting the increased costs was the following:

 

•     Margins from wholesale off-system sales increased $0.7 million. Total MWhs increased 70 percent as Black
Hills Power was able to market excess generation purchased from Cheyenne Light’s Wygen II plant.

 
Electric and Gas Utility
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31,
 2008 2007
 (in thousands)

     
Revenue $ 41,976 $ 36,363
Fuel and purchased power     

and gas  24,615  28,588
Gross margin  17,361  7,775
     
Operating expenses  8,086  5,328
Operating income $ 9,275 $ 2,447
     
Income from continuing     

operations and net income $ 4,591 $ 3,072
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The following tables provide certain operating statistics for the Electric and gas utility segment:
 

 Electric Margins
 (in thousands)
  
 Three Months Ended March 31,
  Percentage  

Customer Base 2008 Change 2007
      
Retail sales $ 21,380 16% $ 18,363
Marketing sales  1,260 —  —
  22,640 23  18,363
Other  2,300 —  (62)

Total electric  24,940 36  18,301
Fuel and purchased power  12,755 (9)  14,014

Total electric margins $ 12,185 184% $ 4,287
 
 

 Gas Margins
 (in thousands)
  
 Three Months Ended March 31,
  Percentage  

Customer Base 2008 Change 2007
      
Commercial $ 1,278 38% $ 926
Residential  3,492 60  2,185
Industrial  180 9  165

Total gas  4,950 51  3,276
Other  226 7  212

Total gas margins $ 5,176 48% $ 3,488
 
 

 Three Months Ended March 31,
  Percentage  

 2008 Change 2007
    
Electric sales - MWh 255,430 6% 241,830
Gas sales - Dth 2,156,320 9% 1,969,585
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 Electric and Gas Utility
 Power Plant Availability
  
 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

 2008 2007
   

Coal-fired plant* 92.2% N/A
_______________________
 * Placed in service January 1, 2008
 
 

 Megawatt Hours Generated
 and Purchased
  
 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

  Percentage  

Resources 2008 Change 2007
    
Coal-fired generation 188,013 —% —
MWhs purchased 138,663 (47)% 261,290

Total resources 326,676 25% 261,290
 
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31,
 2008 2007

Heating degree days:   

Actual   

Heating degree days 3,236 3,023
   
Percent of normal   

Heating degree days 103% 96%
 
On January 1, 2008 Wygen II, a 95 MW baseload coal fired power plant commenced commercial service as a rate
base asset to serve Cheyenne Light.
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Three Months Ended March 31, 2008 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2007. Income from
continuing operations increased $1.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008 compared to the three
months ended March 31, 2007 primarily due to the following:
 

•     Increased electric margins of $7.9 million primarily due to an increase in electric rates effective January 1,
2008 and a 6 percent increase in MWh sales as well as the sale to Black Hills Power of surplus energy
generated from the Wygen II plant;

 

•     Purchased power decreased $4.6 million from the prior period due to the availability of lower cost generation
from the Wygen II plant; and

 

•     Gas gross margins increased 48 percent primarily due to the increase in gas rates effective January 1, 2008 and
a 9 percent increase in usage. We believe gross margins are a more useful performance measure as
fluctuations in the cost of gas flows through to revenues through cost recovery rate adjustments.

 
Partially offsetting these increases were the following:

 

•     Operating expenses increased $2.8 million, or 52 percent, primarily due to Wygen II operating costs of
approximately $1.2 million and increased depreciation costs of approximately $1.3 million for the Wygen II
plant; and

 

•     Decreased income from AFUDC due to the completion of Wygen II construction.
 
Rate Increase. In November 2007, the WPSC approved general rate increases of $6.7 million for electric rates and
$4.4 million for natural gas rates to provide for increased costs of providing service. The electric rate increase also
included placing the 95 MW, coal-fired Wygen II power plant into rate base. The WPSC also approved a new pass-
through mechanism for Cheyenne Light’s electric business. For calendar years beginning in 2008, the annual
increase or decrease for transmission, fuel and purchased power costs is passed on to customers, subject to a $1.0
million threshold. Under its tariff, Cheyenne Light collects or refunds 95 percent of the increase or decrease that is
in excess of the $1.0 million threshold. For changes in these costs that are less than the $1.0 million annual
threshold, Cheyenne Light absorbs the increase and likewise retains the savings. The new rates and tariffs were
effective January 1, 2008.
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Non-regulated Energy Group
 
An analysis of results from our Non-regulated energy group’s operating segments follows:
 
Oil and Gas
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

 2008 2007
 (in thousands)

     
Revenue $ 26,122 $ 25,843
Operating expenses  20,489  18,499
Operating income $ 5,633 $ 7,344
     
Income from continuing operations     

and net income $ 2,551 $ 3,591
 
The following tables provide certain operating statistics for our Oil and gas segment:
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

      2008      2007
Fuel production:   

Bbls of oil sold 99,975 103,415
Mcf of natural gas sold 2,563,190 2,678,290
Mcf equivalent sales 3,163,040 3,298,780

 
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

 2008 2007
Average Price Received(a):     

Gas/Mcf(b) $ 7.46(c) $ 7.68
Oil/Bbl $ 79.50 $ 54.47

     
Depletion expense/Mcfe $ 2.33 $ 2.04

________________________
(a) Net of hedge settlement gains/losses
(b) Exclusive of gas liquids
(c) Excludes $2.1 million negative revenue impact for royalty settlement accrual
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The following are summaries of LOE/Mcfe:
 

 Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
 March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007
  Gathering,   Gathering,  
  Compression   Compression  
  and   and  

Location LOE Processing Total LOE Processing Total
             
New Mexico $ 1.54 $ 0.44 $ 1.98 $ 1.26 $ 0.43 $ 1.69
Colorado  1.22  1.22 (a)  2.44  1.50  1.27(a)  2.77
Wyoming  1.81  —  1.81  1.11  —  1.11
All other properties  1.32  (0.02)  1.30  0.84  0.21  1.05
             
All locations $ 1.52 $ 0.27 $ 1.79 $ 1.13 $ 0.32 $ 1.45

__________________________
(a) Reflects the expenses associated with Colorado acquisitions completed in 2006 which included underutilized

gathering, processing and compression assets. The Company anticipates that future development of these
properties will increase the capacity utilization rate of these gathering and processing assets and the per unit
costs will decrease.

 
Three Months Ended March 31, 2008 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2007. Income from
continuing operations decreased $1.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008 compared to the same
period in 2007 primarily due to:
 

•     A $2.8 million decrease due to a royalty settlement, including interest and penalties, with the Jicarilla Apache
Nation;

 

•     A $1.1 million increase in LOE due to industry-wide higher field service costs, costs related to severe weather
conditions, increased regulatory compliance expenses and the impact of additional wells; and

 

•     A $0.5 million increase in depletion expense due to an increase in depletion rates per Mcfe resulting from the
addition of higher average cost reserves over the prior year.

 
Partially offsetting these decreases was the following:
 

•     Revenue increased $0.3 million due to a 46 percent increase in the average hedged price of oil received, offset
by a 3 percent decrease in oil production and a 4 percent decrease in gas production at an average hedged
price of gas received that was 3 percent lower than the prior year. The lower production reflects weather
impacts in the San Juan Basin, ongoing federal drilling permit delays, primarily in the Piceance Basin, and
lower production from non-operated properties.
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Power Generation
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

 2008 2007
 (in thousands)

     
Revenue $ 35,225 $ 39,566
Operating expenses  21,879  25,130
Operating income $ 13,346 $ 14,436
     
Income from continuing operations     

and net income $ 4,316 $ 4,979
 
The following table provides certain operating statistics for our Power generation segment:
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

 2008 2007
   
Contracted power plant fleet availability:   

Coal-fired plant 95.0% 98.8%
Other plants 98.9% 95.5%
Total availability 98.6% 96.1%

 
Three Months Ended March 31, 2008 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2007. Income from
continuing operations decreased $0.7 million due to:
 

•     Lower earnings from the Harbor plant due to a $0.9 million decrease in contract termination revenues and
higher maintenance costs for unplanned repairs;

 

•     Lower earnings from power fund investments of $0.5 million due to the liquidation of these funds; and
 

•     Increased allocated corporate costs.
 

Partially offsetting these decreases were the following:
 

•     Increased earnings from Las Vegas II due to increased dispatch and lower maintenance costs; and
 

•     Lower depreciation expense due to a decrease in componentized depreciation.
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Coal Mining
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

 2008 2007
 (in thousands)

     
Revenue $ 13,247 $ 9,745
Operating expenses  11,617  8,128
Operating income $ 1,630 $ 1,617
     
Income from continuing operations     

and net income $ 1,629 $ 1,615
 
The following table provides certain operating statistics for our Coal mining segment:
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

 2008 2007
 (in thousands)

   
Fuel production:   

Tons of coal sold 1,545 1,212
 
Three Months Ended March 31, 2008 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2007.
Income from continuing operations from our Coal mining segment for the three months ended March 31, 2008 was
comparable to the same period in the prior year. Results were impacted by the following:
 

•     Revenue increased $3.5 million, or 36 percent, for the three month period ended March 31, 2008 compared to
the same period in 2007. Revenues increased due to an increase in average price received and higher tons of
coal sold, primarily due to additional sales to Cheyenne Light for Wygen II and increased train load-out sales.

 
Offsetting the increased revenue was the following:
 

•     Operating expenses increased $3.5 million, or 43 percent, during the three months ended March 31, 2008
primarily due to higher mining costs associated with higher revenues and production including increased coal
taxes and increased overburden removal costs due to a 79 percent increase in cubic yards moved.
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Energy Marketing
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

 2008 2007
 (in thousands)

Revenue –     

Realized gas marketing     

gross margin $ 13,423 $ 21,244
Unrealized gas marketing     

gross margin  (6,785)  6,526
Realized oil marketing     

gross margin  1,573  717
Unrealized oil marketing     

gross margin  (2,092)  (50)
  6,119  28,437
     

Operating expenses  5,937  8,987
Operating income $ 182 $ 19,450
     
Income from continuing operations     

and net income $ 299 $ 12,659
 
The following is a summary of average daily energy marketing volumes:
 

 Three Months Ended
 March 31,

 2008 2007
   
Natural gas physical sales – MMBtus 1,794,090  1,898,630
   
Crude oil physical sales – Bbls      7,080 6,050

 
Three Months Ended March 31, 2008 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2007. Income from
continuing operations decreased $12.4 million due to:
 

•     A $7.8 million pre-tax decrease in realized gas marketing margins primarily resulting from prevailing
conditions in natural gas markets affecting both transportation and storage strategies. The Rockies Express
Pipeline’s west segment was placed into service during the quarter resulting in a compressed Rocky Mountain
basis spread contributing to the decrease in margin. The decrease in realized gas marketing margins was
partially offset by increased realized crude oil marketing margins that benefited from increased volumes and
higher margins per barrel marketed. Physical volumes marketed decreased 6 percent for natural gas and
increased 17 percent for crude oil; and

 

•     A $15.4 million pre-tax decrease in unrealized marketing margins.
 

Partially offsetting these decreases was the following:
 

•     Lower compensation cost related to the decreased realized marketing margins.
 

46



Corporate
 
Three Months Ended March 31, 2008 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2007. Losses increased
$2.3 million due to increased unallocated costs in the three months ended March 31, 2008, compared to the same
period in 2007, primarily as a result of increased transitional and integration costs of approximately $2.7 million
after-tax related to the pending purchase of certain Aquila assets. Offsetting the increase in unallocated costs were
$1.1 million after-tax proceeds from an earlier sale of development rights in a power plant project. This
represented the first of two payments that were contingent upon certain agreed-upon terms for construction
progress occurring.
 

Critical Accounting Policies
 
There have been no material changes in our critical accounting policies from those reported in our 2007 Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC. For more information on our critical accounting policies, see Part II,
Item 7 of our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

 
Liquidity and Capital Resources

 
Cash Flow Activities
 
During the three month period ended March 31, 2008, we generated sufficient cash flow from operations to meet
our operating needs, to pay dividends on our common stock, to pay our scheduled long-term debt maturities and to
fund a portion of our property, plant and equipment additions. We plan to fund future property and investment
additions including our pending acquisition of certain electric and gas utility assets of Aquila and the construction
costs of the 100 MW Wygen III generation facility located near Gillette, Wyoming from internally generated cash
resources including proceeds from the pending sale of certain IPP assets and from a combination of external
financings.
 
Cash flows from operations of $53.7 million represent a $39.0 million decrease for the three month period ended
March 31, 2008 compared to the same period in the prior year due to a $15.9 million decrease in income from
continuing operations and from the following:
 

•     A $59.5 million decrease in cash flows from working capital changes. This decrease primarily resulted from
changes in net accounts receivable and accounts payable offset by a $10.5 million increase in cash flows from
a net sale of materials, supplies and fuel. This is primarily related to natural gas held in storage by our natural
gas and crude oil marketing business which fluctuates based on economic decisions reflecting current market
conditions;

 

•     A $28.7 million increase in cash flows from the net change in derivative assets and liabilities, primarily from
derivatives associated with normal operations of our gas and oil marketing business and related commodity
price fluctuations;

 

•     A $5.0 million decrease in cash flows related to changes in deferred income taxes which is primarily the result
of accelerated deductions relating to property, plant and equipment, intangible drilling costs related to our Oil
and gas segment and changes in derivative assets and liabilities; and

 

•     A $2.5 million increase in depreciation, depletion and amortization.
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During the three months ended March 31, 2008, we had cash outflows from investing activities of
$80.6 million, which were primarily due to the following:
 

•     Cash outflows of $74.3 million for property, plant and equipment additions. In addition to expenditures for
property, plant and equipment in the normal course of business, these outflows include approximately $20.0
million related to the construction of our Wygen III power plant, approximately $12.1 million in oil and gas
property maintenance capital and development drilling, and $17.6 million related to the construction of the
Valencia power plant; and

 

•     Cash outflows of $7.3 million for short-term investments.
 
During the three months ended March 31, 2008, we had net cash inflow from financing activities of $21.8 million,
primarily due to:
 

•     $36.0 million net borrowings of funds from our credit facility; partially offset by:
 

•     The payment of cash dividends on common stock.
 
Dividends
 
Dividends paid on our common stock totaled $13.3 million during the three months ended March 31, 2008, or
$0.35 per share. At its April 28, 2008 meeting, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend payable June
1, 2008 of $0.35 per share, equivalent to an annual dividend rate of $1.40 per share. The determination of the
amount of future cash dividends, if any, to be declared and paid will depend upon, among other things, our
financial condition, funds from operations, the level of our capital expenditures, restrictions under our credit
facility and our future business prospects.
 
Financing Transactions and Short-Term Liquidity
 
Our principal sources of short-term liquidity are our revolving credit facility and cash provided by operations. Our
liquidity position remained strong during the first three months of 2008. As of March 31, 2008, we had
approximately $75.6 million of cash unrestricted for operations. Approximately $2.8 million of the March 31,
2008 cash balance was restricted by subsidiary debt agreements that limit our subsidiaries’ ability to dividend cash
to the parent company.
 
Our $400 million revolving credit facility expires on May 4, 2010. The cost of borrowings or letters of credit
issued under the facility is determined based on our credit ratings. At our current ratings levels, the facility has an
annual facility fee of 17.5 basis points, and has a borrowing spread of 0.70 basis points over LIBOR (which
equates to a 3.4 percent one-month borrowing rate as of March 31, 2008).
 
Our revolving credit facility can be used to fund our working capital needs and for general corporate purposes. At
March 31, 2008, we had borrowings of $73.0 million and $49.4 million of letters of credit issued. Available
capacity remaining on our revolving credit facility was approximately $277.6 million at March 31, 2008.
 
The credit facility includes customary affirmative and negative covenants, such as limitations on the creation of
new indebtedness and on certain liens, restrictions on certain transactions and maintenance of the following
financial covenants:
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•     a consolidated net worth in an amount of not less than the sum of $625 million and 50 percent of our

aggregate consolidated net income beginning January 1, 2005;
 

•     a recourse leverage ratio not to exceed 0.65 to 1.00, (or 0.70 to 1.00 for the first year after the Aquila
acquisition); and

 

•     an interest expense coverage ratio of not less than 2.5 to 1.0.
 
If these covenants are violated, it would be considered an event of default entitling the lenders to terminate the
remaining commitment and accelerate all principal and interest outstanding.
 
A default under the credit facility may be triggered by events such as a failure to comply with financial covenants
or certain other covenants under the credit facility, a failure to make payments when due or a failure to make
payments when due in respect of, or a failure to perform obligations relating to, other debt obligations of $20
million or more. A default under the credit facility would permit the participating banks to restrict our ability to
further access the credit facility for loans or new letters of credit, require the immediate repayment of any
outstanding loans with interest and require the cash collateralization of outstanding letter of credit obligations.
 
The credit facility prohibits us from paying cash dividends if a default or an event of default exists prior to, or
would result, after giving effect to such action.
 
Our consolidated net worth was $965.2 million at March 31, 2008, which was approximately $225.2 million in
excess of the net worth we were required to maintain under the credit facility. Our long-term debt ratio at March
31, 2008 was 36.8 percent, our total debt leverage (long-term debt and short-term debt) was 44.6 percent, our
recourse leverage ratio was approximately 45.8 percent and our interest expense coverage ratio for the twelve
month period ended March 31, 2008 was 5.2 to 1.0.
 
In addition, Enserco, our energy marketing segment, has a $300 million uncommitted, discretionary line of credit
to provide support for the purchase and sale of natural gas and crude oil. The line of credit is secured by all of
Enserco’s assets. At March 31, 2008, there were outstanding letters of credit issued under the facility of $170.2
million, with no borrowing balances outstanding on the facility. This credit facility was recently renewed for
another year, extending the expiration to May 8, 2009.
 
Our corporate credit rating by Moody’s was “Baa3” during the first three months of 2008; the outlook is negative.
Our corporate credit rating by S&P was “BBB-;” the outlook is stable.
 
On May 7, 2007, we entered into a senior unsecured $1.0 billion Acquisition Facility with ABN AMRO Bank N.V.
as administrative agent and other banks to provide for funding for our pending acquisition of Aquila’s electric
utility in Colorado and its gas utilities in Colorado, Kansas, Nebraska and Iowa. The Acquisition Facility is a
committed facility to fund an acquisition term loan in a single draw in an amount of up to $1.0 billion. The
commitment to fund the acquisition term loan terminates on August 5, 2008. Upon funding of the loan, the loan
termination date is February 5, 2009.
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The Acquisition Facility includes conditions precedent to funding which include consummation of the Aquila
acquisition substantially in accordance with the existing asset purchase agreement. Borrowings under the term loan
can be made under a base rate option, which is based on the then-current prime rate, or under a LIBOR option,
which is based on the then-current LIBOR plus an applicable margin. The applicable margin for LIBOR
borrowings is 55 basis points during the period from the initial funding under the term loan to six months
thereafter, 67.5 basis points during the period from six months and one day after the initial funding to nine months
thereafter, and 92.5 basis points during the period from nine months and one day after the initial funding until the
loan maturity. The facility also includes certain customary affirmative and negative covenants which largely
replicate the covenants under our existing revolving credit facility.
 
We plan to fund future property and investment additions including our pending acquisition of certain electric and
gas utility assets of Aquila and the construction costs of the 100 MW Wygen III generation facility located near
Gillette, Wyoming from internally generated cash resources including proceeds from the pending sale of certain
IPP assets and from a combination of external financings. Our Wygen I project debt of $128.3 million matures in
June 2008. We initially intend to refinance this indebtedness through borrowings on the revolving credit facility
until permanent financing is complete.
 
Our ability to obtain additional financing, if necessary, will depend upon a number of factors, including our future
performance and financial results, and capital market conditions. We can provide no assurance that we will be able
to raise additional capital on reasonable terms or at all.
 
There have been no other material changes in our financing transactions and short-term liquidity from those
reported in Item 7 of our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC.
 
Capital Requirements
 
During the three months ended March 31, 2008, capital expenditures were approximately $74.1 million for
property, plant and equipment additions, which were partially financed through approximately $25.5 million of
accrued liabilities. We currently expect total capital expenditures, excluding the Aquila asset acquisition, for 2008
to approximate $298.7 million, including $40.7 million related to the Valencia 149 MW, simple-cycle gas turbine
generating facility located near Albuquerque, New Mexico, $57.8 million for the 100 MW Wygen III power plant
located near Gillette, Wyoming (with the assumption we retain 55 percent ownership in the plant), and $94.2
million within our Oil and gas segment primarily for maintenance capital and development drilling.
 
We continue to actively evaluate potential future acquisitions and other growth opportunities in accordance with
our disclosed business strategy. We are not obligated to a project until a definitive agreement is entered into and
cannot guarantee we will be successful in acquiring or developing any potential projects. Future projects are
dependent upon the availability of attractive economic opportunities and, as a result, actual expenditures may vary
significantly from forecasted estimates.
 

New Accounting Pronouncements
 
Other than the new pronouncements reported in our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC and
those discussed in Notes 2 and 3 of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q, there have been no new accounting pronouncements issued that when implemented would
require us to either retroactively restate prior period financial statements or record a cumulative catch-up
adjustment.
 

50



SAFE HARBOR FOR FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION
 
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q includes “forward-looking statements” as defined by the SEC. We make
these forward-looking statements in reliance on the safe harbor protections provided under the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All statements, other than statements of historical facts, included in this Form 10-Q
that address activities, events or developments that we expect, believe or anticipate will or may occur in the future
are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based on assumptions which we believe are
reasonable based on current expectations and projections about future events and industry conditions and trends
affecting our business. However, whether actual results and developments will conform to our expectations and
predictions is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that, among other things, could cause actual results to
differ materially from those contained in the forward-looking statements, including the risk factors described in
Item 1A. of Part I of our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K, our other report and filings with the SEC, and the
following:
 

•     Our ability to obtain adequate cost recovery for our retail utility operations through regulatory proceedings; to
receive favorable rulings in periodic applications to recover costs for fuel and purchased power in our regulated
utilities; and our ability to add power generation assets into our regulatory rate base;

 

•     Our ability to complete acquisitions or dispositions for which definitive agreements have been executed;
 

•     Our ability to obtain regulatory approval of acquisitions or dispositions which, even if approved, could impose
financial and operating conditions or restrictions that could impact our expected results;

 

•     Our ability to successfully integrate and profitably operate any future acquisitions;
 

•     The amount and timing of capital deployment in new investment opportunities or for the repurchase of debt or
stock;

 

•     Our ability to obtain beneficial income tax treatment to defer gains associated with asset dispositions;
 

•     Our ability to successfully maintain or improve our corporate credit rating;
 

•     Our ability to obtain from utility commissions any requisite determination of prudency to support resource planning
and development programs we propose to implement;

 

•     Our ability to complete the planning, permitting, construction, start up and operation of power generating facilities
in a cost-effective and timely manner;

 

•     Our ability to meet production targets for our oil and gas properties, which may be dependent upon issuance by
federal, state, and tribal governments, or agencies thereof, of drilling, environmental and other permits, and the
availability and cost of specialized contractors, work force, and equipment;

 

•     Our ability to provide accurate estimates of proved oil and gas reserves, coal reserves and actual future production
rates and associated costs;

 

•     The extent of our success in connecting natural gas supplies to gathering, processing and pipeline systems;
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•     The timing and extent of scheduled and unscheduled outages of power generation facilities;
 

•     The possibility that we may be required to take impairment charges to reduce the carrying value of some of our
long-lived assets when indicators of impairment emerge;

 

•     Changes in business and financial reporting practices arising from the enactment of the Energy Policy Act of 2005;
 

•     Our ability to remedy any deficiencies that may be identified in the review of our internal controls;
 

•     The timing, volatility and extent of changes in energy-related and commodity prices, interest rates, foreign exchange
rates, energy and commodity supply or volume, the cost and availability of transportation of commodities, and
demand for our services, all of which can affect our earnings, liquidity position and the underlying value of our
assets;

 

•     Our ability to effectively use derivative financial instruments to hedge commodity, currency exchange rate and
interest rate risks;

 

•     Our ability to minimize defaults on amounts due from counterparties with respect to trading and other transactions;
 

•     The amount of collateral required to be posted from time to time in our transactions;
 

•     Changes in or compliance with laws and regulations, particularly those relating to taxation, safety and protection of
the environment;

 

•     Changes in state laws or regulations that could cause us to curtail our IPP operations;
 

•     Weather and other natural phenomena;
 

•     Industry and market changes, including the impact of consolidations and changes in competition;
 

•     The effect of accounting policies issued periodically by accounting standard-setting bodies;
 

•     The cost and effects on our business, including insurance, resulting from terrorist actions or responses to such
actions or events;

 

•     The outcome of any ongoing or future litigation or similar disputes and the impact on any such outcome or related
settlements;

 

•     Capital market conditions and market uncertainties related to interest rates, which may affect our ability to raise
capital on favorable terms;

 

•     Price risk due to marketable securities held as investments in benefit plans;
 

•     General economic and political conditions, including tax rates or policies and inflation rates; and

•     Other factors discussed from time to time in our other filings with the SEC.
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New factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those described in forward-looking statements
emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for us to predict all such factors, or the extent to which any such
factor or combination of factors may cause actual results to differ from those contained in any forward-looking
statement. We assume no obligation to update publicly any such forward-looking statements, whether as a result of
new information, future events, or otherwise.
 
ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
 
Trading Activities
 
The following table provides a reconciliation of activity in our natural gas and crude oil marketing portfolio that
has been recorded at fair value including market value adjustments on inventory positions that have been
designated as part of a fair value hedge during the three months ended March 31, 2008 (in thousands):
 

Total fair value of energy marketing positions marked-to-market at December 31, 2007 $ 3,718 (a)

Net cash settled during the period on positions that existed at December 31, 2007  (960)
Change in fair value due to change in assumptions  1,898
Unrealized gain on new positions entered during the period and still existing at   

March 31, 2008  535
Realized gain on positions that existed at December 31, 2007 and were settled during   

the period  89
Change in cash collateral(b)  34,163
Unrealized loss on positions that existed at December 31, 2007 and still exist at   

March 31, 2008  (10,491)
   
Total fair value of energy marketing positions at March 31, 2008 $ 28,952(a)

_____________________________
(a) The fair value of energy marketing positions consists of derivative assets/liabilities held at fair value in

accordance with SFAS 157and market value adjustments to natural gas inventory that has been designated as a
hedged item as part of a fair value hedge in accordance with SFAS 133, as follows (in thousands):

 
 March 31, December 31,
 2008 2007
     
Net derivative (liabilities) assets $ (8,475) $ 14,797
Cash collateral  32,876  (1,287)
Market adjustment recorded     

in material, supplies and fuel  4,551  (9,792)
     
 $ 28,952 $ 3,718

 
(b) The Company adopted FSP FIN 39-1 effective January 1, 2008. See Note 2 of the Notes to the Condensed

Consolidated Financial Statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
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GAAP restricts mark-to-market accounting treatment primarily to only those contracts that meet the definition of a
derivative under SFAS 133. Therefore, the above reconciliation does not present a complete picture of our overall
portfolio of trading activities and our expected cash flows from energy trading activities. At our natural gas and
crude oil marketing operations, we often employ strategies that include utilizing derivative contracts along with
inventory, storage and transportation positions to accomplish the objectives of our producer services, end-use
origination and wholesale marketing groups. Except in circumstances when we are able to designate transportation,
storage or inventory positions as part of a fair value hedge, SFAS 133 generally does not allow us to mark our
inventory, transportation or storage positions to market. The result is that while a significant majority of our energy
marketing positions are fully economically hedged, we are required to mark some parts of our overall strategies
(the derivatives) to market value, but are generally precluded from marking the rest of our economic hedges
(transportation, inventory or storage) to market. Volatility in reported earnings and derivative positions should be
expected given these accounting requirements.
 
We adopted the provisions of SFAS 157 on January 1, 2008. SFAS 157 provides a single definition of fair value
and establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires us to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the
use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. We use the fair value methodology outlined in SFAS 157 to
value the assets and liabilities for our outstanding derivative contracts. See Note 12 of the Notes to the Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
 
The sources of fair value measurements were as follows (in thousands):
 

 Maturities
Source of Fair Value Less than 1 year 1 – 2 years Total Fair Value
       
Level 1 $ 32,876 $ — $ 32,876
Level 2  (8,158)  445  (7,713)
Level 3  (567)  (195)  (762)
Market value adjustment for inventory       

(see footnote (a) above)  4,551  —  4,551
       
Total $ 28,702 $ 250 $ 28,952

 
The following table presents a reconciliation of our March 31, 2008 energy marketing positions recorded at fair
value under GAAP to a non-GAAP measure of the fair value of our energy marketing forward book wherein all
forward trading positions are marked-to-market (in thousands):
 

Fair value of our energy marketing positions marked-to-market in accordance with GAAP   

(see footnote (a) above) $ 28,952
Market value adjustments for inventory, storage and transportation positions that are   

part of our forward trading book, but that are not marked-to-market under GAAP  42,671
Fair value of all forward positions (non-GAAP)  71,623
Cash collateral included in GAAP marked-to-market fair value  (32,876)
Fair value of all forward positions excluding cash collateral (non-GAAP) $ 38,747
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There have been no material changes in market risk faced by us from those reported in our 2007 Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed with the SEC. For more information on market risk, see Part II, Items 7 and 7A. in our 2007
Annual Report on Form 10-K, and Note 11 of our Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
 
Activities Other Than Trading
 
The Company has entered into agreements to hedge a portion of its estimated 2008, 2009 and 2010 natural gas and
crude oil production. The hedge agreements in place are as follows:
 
Natural Gas
 

Location Transaction Date Hedge Type Term Volume Price
    (MMBtu/day)  

San Juan El Paso 11/29/2006 Swap 01/08 – 12/08 5,000 $ 7.44
San Juan El Paso 11/29/2006 Swap 11/07 – 12/08 3,000 $ 7.49
San Juan El Paso 01/04/2007 Swap 04/08 – 03/09 2,500 $ 6.93
San Juan El Paso 01/04/2007 Swap 04/08 – 03/09 1,000 $ 6.96
San Juan El Paso 01/05/2007 Swap 01/09 – 03/09 1,500 $ 7.51
San Juan El Paso 01/10/2007 Swap 04/08 – 12/08 1,500 $ 6.88
San Juan El Paso 01/11/2007 Swap 04/08 –12/08 2,000 $ 6.81
San Juan El Paso 02/12/2007 Swap 01/09 – 03/09 5,000 $ 7.87
San Juan El Paso 04/25/2007 Swap 04/09 – 06/09 2,500 $ 7.21
San Juan El Paso 04/26/2007 Swap 04/09 – 06/09 2,500 $ 7.15
San Juan El Paso 05/09/2007 Swap 04/09 – 06/09 5,000 $ 7.24
CIG 05/09/2007 Swap 04/09 – 06/09 2,000 $ 6.87
CIG 05/09/2007 Swap 01/09 – 03/09 2,000 $ 8.37
San Juan El Paso 07/27/2007 Swap 07/09 – 09/09 5,000 $ 7.63
CIG 09/07/2007 Swap 07/09 – 09/09 1,500 $ 6.48
CIG 09/07/2007 Swap 04/08 – 12/08 1,500 $ 5.91
AECO 09/07/2007 Swap 04/08 – 10/09 1,000 $ 6.89
San Juan El Paso 10/29/2007 Swap 07/09 – 09/09 5,000 $ 7.38
San Juan El Paso 10/29/2007 Swap 10/09 – 12/09 5,000 $ 7.53
CIG 10/29/2007 Swap 10/09 – 12/09 1,500 $ 7.07
NWR 11/16/2007 Swap 01/09 – 12/09 1,500 $ 6.87
San Juan El Paso Basis 11/16/2007 Swap 04/08 – 12/08 -1,500 $ (0.93)
NWR Basis 11/16/2007 Swap 04/08 – 12/08 1,500 $ (1.64)
San Juan El Paso 12/13/2007 Swap 10/09 – 12/09 1,500 $ 7.39
San Juan El Paso 12/13/2007 Swap 10/09 – 12/09 1,500 $ 7.41
CIG 01/03/2008 Swap 01/10 – 03/10 2,000 $ 7.49
NWR 01/03/2008 Swap 01/10 – 03/10 1,500 $ 7.50
AECO 01/03/2008 Swap 11/09 – 03/10 1,000 $ 8.07
San Juan El Paso 01/23/2008 Swap 01/10 – 03/10 5,000 $ 7.50
AECO 01/23/2008 Swap 04/08 – 12/08 1,000 $ 6.87
San Juan El Paso 02/28/2008 Swap 01/10 – 03/10 3,000 $ 8.55
AECO 02/28/2008 Swap 04/08 – 10/08 1,000 $ 8.37
CIG 02/28/2008 Swap 04/08 – 10/08 1,000 $ 7.73
San Juan El Paso 04/09/2008 Swap 04/10 – 06/10 5,000 $ 7.26
San Juan El Paso 04/30/2008 Swap 04/10 – 06/10 2,500 $ 7.65
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Crude Oil
 

Location Transaction Date Hedge Type Term Volume Price
    (Bbls/month)  

      
NYMEX 01/30/2007 Swap Calendar 2008 5,000 $ 61.38
NYMEX 02/20/2007 Put Calendar 2008 5,000 $ 60.00
NYMEX 03/07/2007 Swap Calendar 2008 5,000 $ 67.34
NYMEX 03/23/2007 Swap 01/09 – 03/09 5,000 $ 67.60
NYMEX 03/26/2007 Put Calendar 2008 5,000 $ 63.00
NYMEX 03/28/2007 Swap 01/09 – 03/09 5,000 $ 69.00
NYMEX 04/12/2007 Put 01/09 – 03/09 5,000 $ 65.00
NYMEX 04/26/2007 Swap 04/09 – 06/09 5,000 $ 70.25
NYMEX 05/10/2007 Swap 04/09 – 06/09 5,000 $ 69.10
NYMEX 05/29/2007 Put 04/09 – 06/09 5,000 $ 65.00
NYMEX 06/22/2007 Swap 07/09 – 09/09 5,000 $ 72.10
NYMEX 07/27/2007 Put 07/09 – 09/09 5,000 $ 65.00
NYMEX 09/12/2007 Swap 07/09 – 09/09 5,000 $ 71.20
NYMEX 09/12/2007 Put 01/09 – 03/09 5,000 $ 70.00
NYMEX 09/12/2007 Put 04/09 – 06/09 5,000 $ 70.00
NYMEX 10/29/2007 Put 10/09 – 12/09 5,000 $ 75.00
NYMEX 10/29/2007 Swap 10/09 – 12/09 5,000 $ 80.75
NYMEX 11/16/2007 Put 04/08 – 06/08 5,000 $ 75.00
NYMEX 11/16/2007 Put 07/09 – 09/09 5,000 $ 75.00
NYMEX 11/16/2007 Put 10/09 – 12/09 5,000 $ 75.00
NYMEX 01/03/2008 Put 01/10 – 03/10 5,000 $ 80.00
NYMEX 01/03/2008 Swap 01/10 – 03/10 5,000 $ 88.70
NYMEX 01/23/2008 Swap 10/09 – 12/09 5,000 $ 83.10
NYMEX 01/23/2008 Swap 01/10 – 03/10 5,000 $ 82.90
NYMEX 02/28/2008 Put 01/10 – 03/10 5,000 $ 85.00
NYMEX 04/09/2008 Swap 04/10 – 06/10 5,000 $ 99.60
NYMEX 04/30/2008 Put 04/10 – 06/10 5,000 $ 85.00

 
 
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
 
Our Chief Executive Officer, who is also currently serving as interim Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of March 31, 2008. Based on his evaluation, he has concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures are effective.
 
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended March 31, 2008
that materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting.
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BLACK HILLS CORPORATION
 

Part II – Other Information
 
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
 

For information regarding legal proceedings, see Note 18 in Item 8 of our 2007 Annual Report
on Form 10-K and Note 13 in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, which
information from Note 13 is incorporated by reference into this item.

 
Item 1A. Risk Factors
 

There have been no material changes in our Risk Factors from those reported in Item 1A. of Part
I of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.
 

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
 

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
 

    Maximum
   Total Number (or
   Number Approximate
   of Shares Dollar
 Total  Purchased as Value) of Shares
 Number  Part of Publicly That May Yet Be
 of Average Announced Purchased Under
 Shares Price Paid Plans the Plans
Period Purchased per Share or Programs or Programs
       
January 1, 2008 –       

January 31, 2008 11,692 (1) $ 41.95 —  —
       
February 1, 2008 –       

February 29, 2008 938 (1) $ 40.18 —  —
       
March 1, 2008 –       

March 31, 2008 729 (1) $ 36.04 —  —
       
Total 13,359 $ 41.50 —  —

__________________________
(1) Shares were acquired from certain officers and key employees under the share withholding provisions of the

Omnibus Incentive Plan for the payment of taxes associated with the vesting of shares of Restricted Stock and
the exercise of stock options.
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  Item 5.  Other Information
 
Entry into a Material Definitive Agreement
 
On May 8, 2008, the Registrant’s subsidiary, Enserco Energy Inc. (“Enserco”), entered into a
Fourth Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of June 1,
2006, by and among Enserco, Fortis Capital Corp., as Administrative Agent, Documentation
Agent and Collateral Agent, BNP Paribas, U.S. Bank National Association, Societe Generale
and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd, New York Branch. The Fourth Amendment
extended the term of the facility to May 8, 2009.

 
Item 6. Exhibits  
   
 Exhibit 10.1 Severance and Release Agreement between Black Hills Corporation and

Mark T. Thies dated January 18, 2008 (filed as Exhibit 10 to the
Company’s Form 8-K filed on January 18, 2008 and incorporated by
reference herein).

   
 Exhibit 10.2 Mutual Notice of Extension provided as of January 31, 2008, by and among

Black Hills Corporation, Aquila, Inc. and Great Plains Energy Incorporated
(filed as Exhibit 10 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on February 1, 2008
and incorporated by reference herein).

   
 Exhibit 10.3 Fourth Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit

Agreement effective May 8, 2008, among Enserco Energy Inc., the
borrower, Fortis Capital Corp., as administrative agent, documentation
agent and collateral agent, BNP Paribas, U.S. Bank National Association,
Societe Generale, and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., New York
Branch.

   
 Exhibit 10.4 Third Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement

effective March 5, 2008, among Enserco Energy Inc., the borrower, Fortis
Capital Corp., as administrative agent, documentation agent and collateral
agent, BNP Paribas, U.S. Bank National Association, Societe Generale, and
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., New York Branch.

   
 Exhibit 31 Certification pursuant to Rule 13a – 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes – Oxley Act of
2002.

   
 Exhibit 32 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes – Oxley Act of 2002.
 
 

58



BLACK HILLS CORPORATION
 
Signatures
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
 

 BLACK HILLS CORPORATION
  
  
 /s/ David R. Emery
 David R. Emery, Chairman, President and
 Chief Executive Officer
 and interim Principal Financial Officer
  
  
Dated: May 9, 2008  
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documentation agent and collateral agent, BNP Paribas, U.S. Bank National Association,
Societe Generale, and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., New York Branch.
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pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes – Oxley Act of 2002.
  
Exhibit 32 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes – Oxley Act of 2002.
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Execution Copy
 

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO
SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT

 
This FOURTH AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT

(this “Agreement”) is entered into effective as of May 8, 2008, among ENSERCO ENERGY INC., a South
Dakota corporation (the “Borrower”), FORTIS CAPITAL CORP. (“Fortis”), a Connecticut corporation, as a
Bank, an Issuing Bank and as Administrative Agent, Documentation Agent and Collateral Agent for the Banks (in
such capacity, the “Agent”), BNP PARIBAS ("BNP Paribas”), a bank organized under the laws of France, as an
Issuing Bank and a Bank, U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION (“U.S. Bank”), a national banking
association, as a Bank, SOCIETE GENERALE, a bank organized under the laws of France, as a Bank
(“SocGen”), and THE BANK OF TOKYO-MITSUBISHI UFJ, LTD., NEW YORK BRANCH, successor by
merger to UFJ BANK LIMITED, NEW YORK BRANCH (“BTMU”), a bank organized under the laws of
Japan, acting through its New York Branch, as a Bank, and each other financial institution which may become a
party hereto (collectively, the “Banks”).

WHEREAS, the Borrower, Agent and the Banks entered into that certain Second Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement, dated to be effective as of June 1, 2006, (including all annexes, exhibits and schedules thereto,
as from time to time amended, restated, supplemented, or otherwise modified, the “Credit Agreement”);

WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested that the Banks extend the Uncommitted Line for one year and
the Banks are willing to do so subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises herein contained and other good and valuable
consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound,
agree as follows:

1.         Defined Terms. All capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this Amendment shall
have the meaning ascribed to them in the Credit Agreement. Unless otherwise specified, all section references
herein refer to sections of the Credit Agreement.

2.         Amendments to Credit Agreement. The Credit Agreement is hereby amended commencing on
the Effective Date (as hereinafter defined) as follows:

(a)       Definition of Expiration Date. Clause (a) of the definition of “Expiration Date” is
amended to read as follows:

 “(a) May 8, 2009; or”

(b)       Definition of Maturity Date. The definition of “Maturity Date” is revised to read as
follows:

“‘Maturity Date’ means May 7, 2010.”



3.         Effectiveness of Amendment. This Amendment shall be effective as of May 8, 2008 (the
“Effective Date”) when the Agent receives an executed copy of this Amendment.

 4. Ratifications, Representations and Warranties.

(a)       The terms and provisions set forth in this Amendment shall modify and supersede all
inconsistent terms and provisions set forth in the Credit Agreement and, except as expressly modified and
superseded by this Amendment, the terms and provisions of the Credit Agreement are ratified and
confirmed and shall continue in full force and effect. Borrower and the Banks agree that the Credit
Agreement, as amended hereby, shall continue to be legal, valid, binding and enforceable in accordance
with its terms.

(b)       To induce the Banks to enter into this Amendment, the Borrower ratifies and confirms
each representation and warranty set forth in the Credit Agreement as if such representations and
warranties were made on the even date herewith, and further represents and warrants (i) that there has
occurred since the date of the last financial statements delivered to the Banks no event or circumstance
that has resulted or could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect, (ii) that no Event
of Default exists on the date hereof, and (iii) that the Borrower is fully authorized to enter into this
Amendment. THE BORROWER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE CREDIT AGREEMENT PROVIDES
FOR A CREDIT FACILITY THAT IS COMPLETELY DISCRETIONARY ON THE PART OF THE
BANKS AND THAT THE BANKS HAVE ABSOLUTELY NO DUTY OR OBLIGATION TO
ADVANCE ANY REVOLVING LOAN OR TO ISSUE ANY LETTER OF CREDIT. THE
BORROWER REPRESENTS AND WARRANTS TO THE BANKS THAT THE BORROWER IS
AWARE OF THE RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH CONDUCTING BUSINESS UTILIZING AN
UNCOMMITTED FACILITY.

5.         Benefits. This Amendment shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Banks and the
Borrower, and their respective successors and assigns; provided, however, that Borrower may not, without the
prior written consent of the Banks, assign any rights, powers, duties or obligations under this Amendment, the
Credit Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents.

6.         Governing Law. THIS AMEDMENT IS GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
NEW YORK WITHOUT REGARD TO THE CHOICE OF LAW RULES OF THAT STATE.

7.         Invalid Provisions. If any provision of this Amendment is held to be illegal, invalid or
unenforceable under present or future laws, such provision shall be fully severable and the remaining provisions of
this Amendment shall remain in full force and effect and shall not be affected by the illegal, invalid or
unenforceable provision or by its severance.

8.         Entire Agreement. THIS CREDIT AGREEMENT, AS AMENDED BY THIS
AMENDMENT, AND THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS REPRESENT THE FINAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE PARTIES AND MAY NOT BE



CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF PRIOR, CONTEMPORANEOUS, OR SUBSEQUENT ORAL
AGREEMENTS OF THE PARTIES. THERE ARE NO UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN
THE PARTIES.

9.         Reference to Credit Agreement. The Credit Agreement and the other Loan Documents, and any
and all other agreements, documents or instruments now or hereafter executed and delivered pursuant to the terms
hereof or pursuant to the terms of the Credit Agreement, as amended hereby, are hereby amended so that any
reference in the Credit Agreement to the Credit Agreement shall mean a reference to the Credit Agreement as
amended hereby.

10.       Counterparts. This Amendment may be separately executed in any number of counterparts, each
of which shall be an original, but all of which, taken together, shall be deemed to constitute one and the same
agreement.

 
[remainder of page intentionally left blank]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be duly executed and
delivered by their proper and duly authorized officers as of the day and year first above written.

ENSERCO ENERGY INC.,
a South Dakota corporation
 

 
By: /s/ David R. Emery 

David R. Emery
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

 
350 Indiana Street, Suite 400
Golden, Colorado 80401
Attention: Tori Campbell
Telephone: (303) 568-3262
Facsimile: (303) 568-3250
 
FORTIS CAPITAL CORP.,
as Agent
 

 
By: /s/ Chad Clark

Name: Chad Clark
Title: Director

 
By: /s/ Irene C. Rummel

Name: Irene C. Rummel
Title: Director

 
15455 North Dallas Parkway
Suite 1400
Addison, TX 75001
Attention: Irene C. Rummel
Telephone: (214) 953-9313
Facsimile: (214) 969-9332



FORTIS CAPITAL CORP.,
as a Bank and an Issuing Bank
 

 
By: /s/ Chad Clark

Name: Chad Clark
Title: Director

 
By: /s/ Irene C. Rummel

Name: Irene C. Rummel
Title: Director

 
 
15455 North Dallas Parkway
Addison, TX 75001
Attention: Irene C. Rummel
Telephone: (214) 953-9313
Facsimile: (214) 969-9332
 
BNP PARIBAS,
as an Issuing Bank and a Bank
 

 
By: /s/ Keith Cox

Name: Keith Cox
Title: Managing
Director

 
By: /s/ Jordan Nenoff

Name: Jordan Nenoff
Title: Director

 
787 Seventh Avenue
New York, NY 10019
Attention: Keith Cox
Phone: (212) 841-2575
Fax: (212) 841-2536



U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as a Bank
 

 
By: /s/ Heather A. Han

Name: Heather A. Han
Title: Assistant Vice
President

 
918 17th Street
DNCOBB3E
Denver, CO 80202

 
Attn: Monte Deckerd

Phone: (303) 585-
4212
Fax: (303) 585-4362

SOCIETE GENERALE,
as a Bank
 

 
By: /s/ Barbara Paulsen

Name: Barbara Paulsen
Title: Managing Director

 
1221 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10020
Attn: Barbara Paulsen
Phone: (212) 278-6496
Fax: (212) 278-7953



THE BANK OF TOKYO-MITSUBISHI UFJ, LTD.,
NEW YORK BRANCH,
as a Bank
 

 
By: /s/ Chan K. Park

Name: Chan K. Park
Title: SVP & Manager

 

1251 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10020-1104

 
Attention: Commodities & Structured Trade

Finance Group – Chan Park
Phone: (212) 782-5512
Fax: (212) 782-5871

 
 
 



Execution Copy
 

THIRD AMENDMENT TO
SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT

 
THIS THIRD AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT

(this “Amendment”) is entered into effective as of March 5, 2008, among ENSERCO ENERGY INC., a South
Dakota corporation (the “Borrower”), FORTIS CAPITAL CORP. (“Fortis”), a Connecticut corporation, as a
Bank, an Issuing Bank and as Administrative Agent, Documentation Agent and Collateral Agent for the Banks (in
such capacity, the “Agent”), BNP PARIBAS ("BNP Paribas”), a bank organized under the laws of France, as an
Issuing Bank and a Bank, U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION (“U.S. Bank”), a national banking
association, as a Bank, SOCIETE GENERALE, a bank organized under the laws of France, as a Bank
(“SocGen”), and THE BANK OF TOKYO-MITSUBISHI UFJ, LTD., NEW YORK BRANCH (“BTMU”), a
bank organized under the laws of Japan, acting through its New York Branch, as a Bank, and each other financial
institution which may become a party hereto (collectively, the “Banks”).

WHEREAS, the Borrower, Agent and the Banks entered into that certain Second Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement, dated to be effective as of June 1, 2006, (including all annexes, exhibits and schedules thereto,
as from time to time amended, restated, supplemented, or otherwise modified, the “Credit Agreement”);

WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested that the Banks agree to an amendment to the Credit Agreement
and the Banks are willing to do so subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises herein contained and other good and valuable
consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound,
agree as follows:

1.         Defined Terms. All capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this Amendment shall
have the meaning ascribed to them in the Credit Agreement. Unless otherwise specified, all section references
herein refer to sections of the Credit Agreement.

2.         Amendments to Credit Agreement. The Credit Agreement is hereby amended commencing on
the Effective Date (as hereinafter defined) as follows:

(a)       Definition of Performance L/C. The definition of “Performance L/C” is amended to
read as follows:

“‘Performance L/C’ means any Letters of Credit securing counterparties for
performance under Product contracts:

 (a) with an expiry date of 90 days or less, or

(b)       with an expiry date of 365 days or less, which Letter of Credit may contain a
clause providing for automatic renewal of the expiry date for periods of up to 365 days with a
90-day minimum notice of non-



renewal, provided that the aggregate L/C Obligations with respect to such Letters of Credit may
not exceed $5,000,000.00.”

3.         Effectiveness of Amendment. This Amendment shall be effective on the date the Agent receives
the consent of the Required Banks and an executed copy of this Amendment.

4.         Post-Effectiveness Agreement. The Borrower, the Agent and the Banks agree that, as soon as
practicable following the Effective Date of this Amendment, the Borrower may establish one or more Bank
Blocked Accounts at Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., provided that each such account is subject to a Blocked Account
Agreement in form and substance satisfactory to the Agent, and that such accounts will be considered Bank
Blocked Accounts for purposes of the Credit Agreement.

 5. Ratifications, Representations and Warranties.

(a)       The terms and provisions set forth in this Amendment shall modify and supersede all
inconsistent terms and provisions set forth in the Credit Agreement and, except as expressly modified and
superseded by this Amendment, the terms and provisions of the Credit Agreement are ratified and
confirmed and shall continue in full force and effect. Borrower and the Banks agree that the Credit
Agreement, as amended hereby, shall continue to be legal, valid, binding and enforceable in accordance
with its terms.

(b)       To induce the Banks to enter into this Amendment, the Borrower ratifies and confirms
each representation and warranty set forth in the Credit Agreement as if such representations and
warranties were made on the even date herewith, and further represents and warrants (i) that there has
occurred since the date of the last financial statements delivered to the Banks no event or circumstance
that has resulted or could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect, (ii) that no Event
of Default exists on the date hereof, and (iii) that the Borrower is fully authorized to enter into this
Amendment. THE BORROWER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE CREDIT AGREEMENT PROVIDES
FOR A CREDIT FACILITY THAT IS COMPLETELY DISCRETIONARY ON THE PART OF THE
BANKS AND THAT THE BANKS HAVE ABSOLUTELY NO DUTY OR OBLIGATION TO
ADVANCE ANY REVOLVING LOAN OR TO ISSUE ANY LETTER OF CREDIT. THE
BORROWER REPRESENTS AND WARRANTS TO THE BANKS THAT THE BORROWER IS
AWARE OF THE RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH CONDUCTING BUSINESS UTILIZING AN
UNCOMMITTED FACILITY.

6.         Benefits. This Amendment shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Banks and the
Borrower, and their respective successors and assigns; provided, however, that Borrower may not, without the
prior written consent of the Banks, assign any rights, powers, duties or obligations under this Amendment, the
Credit Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents.



7.         Governing Law. THIS AMEDMENT IS GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
NEW YORK WITHOUT REGARD TO THE CHOICE OF LAW RULES OF THAT STATE.

8.         Invalid Provisions. If any provision of this Amendment is held to be illegal, invalid or
unenforceable under present or future laws, such provision shall be fully severable and the remaining provisions of
this Amendment shall remain in full force and effect and shall not be affected by the illegal, invalid or
unenforceable provision or by its severance.

9.         Entire Agreement. THIS CREDIT AGREEMENT, AS AMENDED BY THIS
AMENDMENT, AND THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS REPRESENT THE FINAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE PARTIES AND MAY NOT BE CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF PRIOR,
CONTEMPORANEOUS, OR SUBSEQUENT ORAL AGREEMENTS OF THE PARTIES. THERE ARE
NO UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE PARTIES.

10.       Reference to Credit Agreement. The Credit Agreement and the other Loan Documents, and any
and all other agreements, documents or instruments now or hereafter executed and delivered pursuant to the terms
hereof or pursuant to the terms of the Credit Agreement, as amended hereby, are hereby amended so that any
reference in the Credit Agreement to the Credit Agreement shall mean a reference to the Credit Agreement as
amended hereby.

11.       Loan Document. This Amendment is a “Loan Document” as defined and described in the Credit
Agreement, and all of the terms and provisions of the Credit Agreement relating to the Loan Documents shall
apply hereto.

12.       Counterparts. This Amendment may be separately executed in any number of counterparts, each
of which shall be an original, but all of which, taken together, shall be deemed to constitute one and the same
agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be duly executed and
delivered by their proper and duly authorized officers as of the day and year first above written.

ENSERCO ENERGY INC.,
a South Dakota corporation
 

 
By: /s/ Thomas M. Ohlmacher

Thomas M. Ohlmacher
President and Chief Operating Officer

 
350 Indiana Street, Suite 400
Golden, Colorado 80401
Attention: Thomas M. Ohlmacher
Telephone: (303) 568-3261
Facsimile: (303) 568-3250
 



FORTIS CAPITAL CORP.,
as Agent
 

 
By: /s/ Chad Clark

Name: Chad Clark
Title: Director

 
By: /s/ Irene C. Rummel

Name: Irene C. Rummel
Title: Director

 
15455 North Dallas Parkway
Suite 1400
Addison, TX 75001
Attention: Irene C. Rummel
Telephone: (214) 953-9313
Facsimile: (214) 969-9332



FORTIS CAPITAL CORP.,
as a Bank and an Issuing Bank
 

 
By: /s/ Chad Clark

Name: Chad Clark
Title: Director

 
By: /s/ Irene C. Rummel

Name: Irene C. Rummel
Title: Director

 
 
15455 North Dallas Parkway
Addison, TX 75001
Attention: Irene C. Rummel
Telephone: (214) 953-9313
Facsimile: (214) 969-9332
 



BNP PARIBAS,
as an Issuing Bank and a Bank
 

 
By: /s/ Keith Cox

Name: Keith Cox
Title:  Managing Director

 
By: /s/ Jordan Nenoff

Name: Jordan Nenoff
Title: Director

 
787 Seventh Avenue
New York, NY 10019
Attention: Keith Cox
Phone: (212) 841-2575
Fax: (212) 841-2536



U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as a Bank
 

 
By: /s/ Heather A. Han

Name: Heather A. Han 
Title:  Assistant Vice President

 
918 17th Street
DNCOBB3E
Denver, CO 80202
Attn: Monte Deckerd
Phone: (303) 585-4212
Fax: (303) 585-4362



SOCIETE GENERALE,
as a Bank
 

 
By: /s/ Barbara Paulsen

Name: Barbara Paulsen
Title: Managing Director

 
1221 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10020
Attn: Barbara Paulsen
Phone: (212) 278-6496
Fax: (212) 278-7953



THE BANK OF TOKYO-MITSUBISHI UFJ, LTD.,
NEW YORK BRANCH,
as a Bank
 

 
By: /s/ Chan K. Park

Name: Chan K. Park
Title: SVP & Manager

1251 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10020-1104

 
Attention: Commodities & Structured Trade

Finance Group – Chan Park
Phone: (212) 782-5512
Fax: (212) 782-5871

 
 



Exhibit 31
 

CERTIFICATION
 

I, David R. Emery, certify that:
 
 1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Black Hills Corporation;

 
 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to

state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 
 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 
 4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

 
 a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
 b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 
 c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented

in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures,
as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 
 d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting

that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 
 5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 

 a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 

 b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

 
Date: May 9, 2008  

 /S/ DAVID R. EMERY
 David R. Emery
 Chairman, President and
 Chief Executive Officer and
 interim Principal Financial Officer

 
 
 



Exhibit 32
 

 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Black Hills Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period
ended March 31, 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I,
David R. Emery, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
ss. 1350, as adopted pursuant to ss. 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 
 (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13 (a) or

15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 
 (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material

respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
 

Date: May 9, 2008  
  
 /S/ DAVID R. EMERY
 David R. Emery
 Chairman, President and
 Chief Executive Officer and
 interim Principal Financial Officer

 
 
 


